
 

There will be a Reorganizational Meeting of the Monroe 2-Orleans Board of Cooperative 
Educational Services on Wednesday, July 12, 2023, at Noon  at the Richard E. TenHaken Educational 
Services Center, 3599 Big Ridge Road, Spencerport, NY 14559 Immediately following the 
Reorganizational Meeting, there will be a Regular Meeting.  
 
BOARD MEMBERS  
Dennis Laba, President Trina Lorentz 
R. Charles Phillips, Vice President Gerald Maar 
John Abbott Michael May 
Cindy Dawson Heather Pyke 
Kathleen Dillon  
  

AGENDA 
 
 
1. Clerk as Temporary Chairperson (Clerk is designated per Board Policy #1438.) 
  
2. Administration of Oath to Board Members, District Superintendent and Officers Present        
  
3. Election of Officers 
 A. President 
 B. Vice President 
  
4. Administration of Oaths to Elected Officers. 
  
5. Appointment of Officers, et. al.: 
 1. Treasurer   Jennifer Talbot  No extra compensation 
    
 2. Assistant Treasurer  Steve Roland   No extra compensation 
    
 3. Clerk of the Board  Kelly Mutschler  $ 5,495.5212 

and Alternate    Linda Rice (alternate)   No extra compensation 
    
 4. Internal Claims Auditor Cynthia Medley-Evanetski $ 27.86/hour 
           and Alternate   Melanie Dickson (alternate) No extra compensation  
    
 5. Records Retention and Lisa Soggs   No extra compensation 
           Disposition Officer  
            (Public Officers Law 65-a)   
    
 6. Records Access Officer Kelly Mutschler   No extra compensation 
           (Public Officers Law 87 1(b) ii)  

 
 
 

 

BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 
SECOND SUPERVISORY DISTRICT COUNTIES OF  
MONROE AND ORLEANS 



July 12, 2023 Reorganizational and Regular Board Meeting 

Page 2 of 6 

7. Records Management Officer
(New York Local Government
Records Law, Chapter 737,
Laws of 1987, Section 57.19) Mark Laubacher No extra compensation 

8. Registrars of Attendance Jennifer O’Shea No extra compensation 
Cynthia M. Hazen-Williams 
Lorraine Bennett 

9. Medicaid Compliance Heather Malone No extra compensation 
Officer

10. Purchasing Agent and Wendy Vergamini No extra compensation 
Alternates Deborah Hartung (alternate) 

Steve Roland (alternate) 

11. Asbestos Designee Scott Mason No extra compensation 

12. FERPA Compliance Officer Lynda VanCoske No extra compensation 
(Family Educational Rights
Privacy Act)

13. Rochester Area Schools Steve Roland  No extra compensation 
Health Plan Designee Jo Anne Antonacci (alternate) 

14. Rochester Area Schools Steve Roland  No extra compensation 
Health Plan II Designee Karen Brown (alternate) 

15. Rochester Area Schools Steve Roland  No extra compensation 
Workers’ Compensation Karen Brown (alternate) 
Plan Designee

6. Administration of Oaths to Appointed Officers, et. al., who are present; oaths to others to be
administered prior to initiating duties.

7. Other appointments:
1. BOCES Attorney Harris Beach, PLLC  Per rate schedule 

2. BOCES Attorney Hodgson Russ, LLP  Per rate schedule 

3. BOCES Attorney Anthony J. Villani, PC  Per rate schedule 

4. BOCES Attorney Woods Oviatt Gilman, LLP Per rate schedule 

5. Extraclassroom Activity Personnel:
a. SkillsUSA Advisor Jennifer Probst $ 1,642.00 
b. Central Treasurer Allysia Pogel No extra compensation 
c. Faculty Advisor Jill Slavny No extra compensation 
d. National Technical

Honor Society Melissa Doherty $   619.00619 

kmutschl
Cross-Out



July 12, 2023 Reorganizational and Regular Board Meeting 

Page 3 of 6 

6. External Independent Mengel, Metzger, Barr & Co $  33,225.00 
Auditor

7. Internal Auditor Lumsden McCormick, CPA $  16,000.00 

8. Civil Rights Compliance Karen Brown No extra compensation 
Officers Steve Roland 
(Title VII, Title IX, ADA & 504)

9. BOCES Physician Dr. Sarah Marques, MD $ 16,000.00 

10. Nurse Practitioners Barbara Swanson No extra compensation 
Cynthia Lawrence 

11. Chemical Hygiene Officer Barbara Swanson No extra compensation 
and Alternate Cynthia Lawrence (alternate)  

12. Liaison for Homeless Phil Ortolani No extra compensation 
Children & Youth

13. Official to Receive Student Thomas Schulte No extra compensation 
Sentence/Adjudication in
Criminal/Juvenile
Delinquency Proceedings

14. Radiation Safety Officer Barbara Swanson No extra compensation 
and Alternate Cynthia Lawrence (alternate)  

15. Compliance Officer (H.R.) Karen Brown No extra compensation 

16. Copyright Officer James Belair  No extra compensation 

17. Integrated Pest Thomas Burke  No extra compensation 
Management Coordinator Travis Sleight (effective 
(IPM)/Pesticide              7/19/2023) 
Representative 

18. BOCES-wide Dignity for Thomas Schulte No extra compensation 
All Students Act
Coordinator

19. School-level Dignity for All
Students Act Coordinators:

Alexis Kyle Regional Summer School (Hilton High School) 
Scott Mikulski  Regional Summer School (Greece Olympia Academy) 
Dr. John Clifford Credit Recovery Program (Greece Athena Academy) 
Debi Walton Extended School Year Program (Terry Taylor Elementary) 
Robert Nells   Extended School Year Program (Ridgecrest Academy) 
Heather Malone Preschool 



July 12, 2023 Reorganizational and Regular Board Meeting 

Page 4 of 6 

Nichole Outhouse Westview Exceptional Children 
(Interim) 
David Liesegang Exceptional Children Learning Center  
Maria Tantillo 6:1:1 Center-Based Program (Spencerport 

Administration Building) 
Rebecca Spence 6:1:1 Center-Based Program (Terry Taylor Elementary) 
James Jewell Special Education Transition Programs at Slayton Plaza, 

Roberts Wesleyan, Golisano Children’s Hospital 
(SEARCH), Paul Rd  

Robert Nells Ridgecrest Academy  
Tony Britt WEMOCO 
Martha Willis Westside Academy 

20. Chief Emergency Officer Douglas Comanzo No extra compensation 

21. Data Protection Officer Ray Miller  No extra compensation 

8. Designations:
1. Official Bank Depositories:

The following banks and trust companies and their affiliated firms are designated for
the deposit of Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES funds in accordance with considerations of
financial stability. The maximum amount on deposit at any one of the identified
financial institutions shall not exceed the amount set by Board regulation.
Name of Institution
J. P. Morgan Chase; J. P. Morgan Securities; Manufacturers and Traders Trust Co.
(M&T Bank); Wilmington Trust, Five Star Bank, NYCLASS

2. Official newspaper: Democrat and Chronicle

3. Official Bulletin Board for Postings: Main Hallway of Educational Services Center

9. Authorizations:
1. District Superintendent to certify payrolls. Assistant Superintendent for Finance and

Operations as Alternate in the absence of the District Superintendent.

2. District Superintendent to approve part-time personnel at previously approved Board
salary/wage rates.

3. District Superintendent to sign and/or approve any and all documents and contracts
requiring the signature of the District Superintendent.

4. Approval of organizational memberships and Board Member and Administrator
attendance of the:

− Monroe County School Boards Association
− Orleans County School Boards Association
− Upstate Institute for School Board & Staff Development (Formerly

known as Genesee Valley School Boards Institute)
− New York State School Boards Association
− National School Boards Association
− BOCES Educational Consortium



July 12, 2023 Reorganizational and Regular Board Meeting 

Page 5 of 6 

− American Association of School Administrators
− American Association of Educational Service Agencies
− Association for Supervision and Curriculum Development
− BOCES Conferences
− Meetings called by the State Education Department
− Meetings necessary to perform the functions and responsibilities of the

board members and administration

5. Establishment of Petty Cash and Change Fund in:
Designated Persons 

a. Administration $100.00 Melanie Dickson 
b. Career/Tech Education (Petty Cash) $100.00 Allysia Pogel 
c. Career/Tech Education (Change) $100.00 Allysia Pogel 
d. Career/Tech Education (Change–Food Service) $  30.00 Allysia Pogel 
e. Career/Tech Education (Change–Culinary) $  50.00 Allysia Pogel 
f. Career/Tech Education (Change–Baking) $  30.00 Allysia Pogel 
g. Science Center Office $  75.00 Gina Vaccarella 
h. Communications/Technology $  50.00 Lucy Fagan 
i. Exceptional Children $100.00 Tanya Frank 
j. Westside Academy $  50.00 Lorraine Bennett 
k. Center for Workforce Development (Change) $  40.00 Nicole Carpenter 
l. Café/Coffee Cart(Westview) $  25.00 Kimberly Stephenson 

6. Designation of Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer to sign all checks.

7. President and/or Chief Executive Officer to sign necessary contracts and documents
on behalf of the Board of Cooperative Educational Services.

8. Vice President to sign contracts and documents in the absence of the President.

9. District Superintendent or designee to approve all budget appropriations in
accordance with Commissioner’s Regulations Section 170.2.

10. Bonding of Personnel: District Treasurer, Central Treasurer of Extraclassroom Activity
Account, Assistant Superintendent for Finance and Operation, Assistant Treasurer, and other
employees who handle cash to be covered by a $5,000,000 Public Employees Blanket Bond.

11. Approval of Advisory Councils’ Membership:
1. Special Education
2. Career and Technical Education
3. School Library System

12. Appointment of representatives and alternates to Monroe County School Boards Association
Committees:
1. Labor Relations Committee
2. Legislation Committee
3. Information Exchange Committee



July 12, 2023 Reorganizational and Regular Board Meeting 

Page 6 of 6 

REGULAR MEETING 
1. Call the Meeting to Order

2. Agenda Item(s) Modifications

3. Public Hearing 2023-24 Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES District-Wide School Safety Plan (SAVE)

4. Approval of Minutes: June 21, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes

5. Public Interaction

6. Financial Reports
1. Resolution to Accept Treasurer’s Report
2. Resolution to Accept WinCap Report
3. Internal Claims Log

7. Audit Committee Update
1. Resolution to Approve Minutes of the June 21, 2023 Audit Committee Meeting

8. New Business
1. First Reading 2022-23 District-Wide School Safety Plan (S.A.V.E.)
2. First Reading - Policy #6464 – Educational Equity and Excellence Policy
3. Resolution to Accept Test Report for the Year Ending June 30, 2023
4. Resolution to Accept Amended Aramark Contract (WALK IN)

9. Personnel and Staffing
1. Resolution to Approve Personnel and Staffing Agenda

10. Bids/Lease Purchases

11. Executive Officer’s Reports
1. Albany D.S. Report
2. Local Update

12. Upcoming Meetings/Calendar Events
• MCSBA Calendar has not been released, will be forwarded
• July 28 Noon SAME Graduation, details forthcoming 
• Aug. 9 6:00 p.m. CWD Graduation, ESC PDC 
• Aug. 10 Noon Board Officer Meeting 
• Aug. 16 6:00 p.m. Board Meeting, ESC Board Room 
• Sept. 4 Labor Day, BOCES Closed 
• Sept. 5 8:00 a.m. Opening Day Ceremony, ESC, PDC 

13. Other Items

14. Adjournment



7. Other appointments:
1. BOCES Attorney  Harris Beach, PLLC Per rate schedule 

2. BOCES Attorney Hodgson Russ, LLP  Per rate schedule 

3. BOCES Attorney Anthony J. Villani, PC Per rate schedule 

4. BOCES Attorney Woods Oviatt Gilman, LLPPer rate schedule 

kmutschl
Cross-Out



Attorney Rate Comparison 
2020-2024 

Harris Beach PLLC Partners Sr. Associates Associates Educational 
Consultants 

Paralegals Law Clerks Legal Assistants 

2020-2021 $270/hr. $250/hr. $270/hr. 

2021-2022 $278/hr. $258/hr. $135/hr. 

2022-2023 $289/hr. $269/hr. $145/hr. 

2023-2024 $299/hr. $279/hr. $150/hr. 

Hodgson Russ LLP Partners Sr. Associates Associates Educational 
Consultants 

Paralegals Law Clerks Legal Assistants 

2020-2021 $274/hr. $260/hr. $236/hr. $182/hr. $124/hr. 

2021-2022 $285/hr. $270/hr. $245/hr. $190/hr. $130/hr. 

2022-2023 $298/hr. $283/hr. $268/hr. $200/hr. $140/hr. 

2023-2024 $314/hr. $298/hr. $283/hr. $215/hr. $150/hr. 

Woods Oviatt Gilman 
LLP 

Partners Sr. Associates Associates Educational 
Consultants 

Paralegals Law Clerks Legal Assistants 

2020-2021 A.Ryan: $410/hr.
All other Partners:

$375-$475/hr. 

$210-$365/hr. $170-$210/hr. 

2021-2022 A.Ryan: $410/hr.
All other Partners:

$375-$475/hr. 

$210-$365/hr. $170-$210/hr. 

2022-2023 A.Ryan: $410/hr.
All other Partners:

$375-$475/hr. 

$210-$365/hr. $170-$210/hr. 

2023-2024 
No longer performing work for 

BOCES per A. Ryan 

Villani & Grow Partners Sr. Associates Associates Educational 
Consultants 

Paralegals Law Clerks Legal Assistants 

2020-2021 $200/hr. 

2021-2022 $200/hr. 

2022-2023 $200/hr. 

2023-2024 $200/hr. 



11. Approval of Advisory Councils’ Membership:
1. Special Education
2. Career and Technical Education
3. School Library System



Shared Decision Making  
SPECIAL EDUCATION ADVISORY COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP 

2023-2024 

I. Three (3) representatives from local institutions of higher learning:

1. Ms. Carol Godsave
(Representing SUNY Brockport)
17 Stuyvesant Manor
Geneseo, NY 14454

2. Ms. Kimberly Prouty
(Representing Roberts Wesleyan
College)
2301 Westside Drive
Rochester, NY 14624

3. Mr. Michael Place
Adjunct Assistant Professor
(Representing Golisano Institute
for Sustainability)
Dept. of Architecture
111 Lomb Memorial Drive
Rochester, NY 14623

(1st yr of 1yr appt) 
Phone: C – 991-3106 
Email: cgodsave@brockport.edu 

(1st yr of 1 yr appt) 
Phone: W – 594-6685 

C – 208-4362 
Email: prouty_kimberly@roberts.edu 

(1st yr of 1 yr appt) 
Phone: C – 410-3586 
Email: MPlace@LaBellaPC.com 

II. Four (4) representatives from local agencies serving persons with disabilities:

mailto:cgodsave@brockport.edu
mailto:prouty_kimberly@roberts.edu
mailto:MPlace@LaBellaPC.com


1. Mr. Chuck Allan
Children’s Project Coordinator/

FACT Education Liaison
Monroe County Dept. of Human

Services
1099 Jay St., Bldg, J, 2nd Floor
Rochester, NY 14611

(1st yr of 1 yr apt) 
Phone: C – 305-5117 

W – 753-2664 
Email: CAllan@monroecounty.gov 

III. One (1) Physician

1. Dr. John Erhart
728 Close Circle
Webster, NY 14580

(1st yr of 1 yr appt) 
Phone: C – 281-8990 
Email: jerhart@monroe2boces.org 

jferhart@rochester.rr.com 

IV. One (1) representative of the Executive Committee of the Special Education Parent-
Teacher Organization (SEPTO)

1. Ms. Debbie Mannix
7200 Rush Lima Road
Honeoye Falls, NY 14472

(1st yr of 1 yr appt) 
Phone: W – 352-2466 

C – 624-3109 
Email: dmannix@monroe2boces.org 

V. Ten (10) parents of children with disabilities representing the BOCES geographic area:

VI. Four (4) representatives from local industry and business:

1. Mr. Michael Place
LaBella Associates, DPC
300 State Street
Rochester, NY 14614

2. TO BE DETERMINED

(1st yr of 1 yr appt) 
Phone: W – 295-6262 

C – 410-3586 
Email: MPlace@LaBellaPC.com 

VII. Two (2) representatives of Boards of Education of component school districts:

mailto:CAllan@monroecounty.gov
mailto:jerhart@monroe2boces.org
mailto:jferhart@rochester.rr.com
mailto:dmannix@monroe2boces.org
mailto:MPlace@LaBellaPC.com


N.B. 1. Liaison Representative to the Occupational Education Advisory Council: 
OPEN 

2. Liaison Representative from the Occupational Educational Advisory Council:
OPEN 

Updated 8/9/17 



Representative Organization Contact Information RSVP - Nov 22 RSVP-DEC RSVP-MAR
Jill Slavny Monroe 2 BOCES CTE-Executive Principal jslavny@monroe2boces.org 1 1 1
Tom Schulte Monroe 2 BOCES ASI tschulte@monroe2boces.org 1 0
Jo Anne Antonacci Monroe 2 BOCES - DS (will attend from 7:30-9AM) jantonac@monroe2boces.org 1
Dennis Laba Monroe 2 BOCES - Board Member 1
Nichole Outhouse Monroe 2 BOCES Asst Director of Exceptional Children nouthous@monroe2boces.org 1 1 1
David Liesegang Monroe 2 BOCES - EC Supervisor dliesega@monroe2boces.org 1
Cori Smith Monroe 2 BOCES Specialist RBE-RN csmith@monroe2boces.org 1 0
Sabrina Nudo Monroe 2 BOCES Coordinator Mid-West RBE-RN snudo@monroe2boces.org
Andrea Lista Cornell Cooperative aml355@cornell.edu 0 1 1
Gwen Bell Cornell Cooperative - Educator gab233@cornell.edu 1
Jarmila Haseler Cornell Cooperative - Educator jh954@cornell.edu 1
Susan Coyle Cornell University - Youth Development Program Leader smc226@cornell.edu 1
Marci Muller Cornell University, Workforce Dev. Horticulture Program Leader mem545@cornell.edu 0 1
Dawn Breitung Children's Institute - Assistant Director dbreitung@childrensinstitute.net 1
Ms. Mustafa George Children's Institute - Associate Director of Equity mgeorge@childrensinstitute.net 0
Andrea Bertucci Children's Institute- Manager of Professional Learning abertucci@childrensinstitute.net 1
Mike LeGault Hilton AP mlegault@hilton.k12.ny.us 1
Ana Liss Monroe County Dept of Planning & Development, Director analiss@monroecounty.gov
Rebecca Case Caico Monroe County Dept of Planning & Development rebeccacaico@monroecounty.gov
Bill Rotenberg MCC - Economic and Workforce Development wrotenberg@monroecc.edu 1
Kevin French Applied Technologies Chairperson kfrench@monroecc.edu
Dr. Robin Cole, Jr VP of Economic Development rcole23@monroecc.edu 1
Melissa Wentland Livingston Assoc, Director of Outreach & Workforce Dev mwentland@livingstonassociates.com 1 1
Dawn Haberer ACCES-VR Counselor dawn.haberer@nysed.gov 1
Jamila Smith URMC - Career Pathways Development Manager jamila_smith@urmc.rochester.edu 1
VonBacho, Stephanie URMC - Senior Director of Learning Stephanie_VonBacho@URMC.Rochester.edu
Victoria Record President of RGCOHC and IGH victoria.record@rochesterregional.org
Sheldon Cox RCSD Sheldon.Cox@RCSDK12.ORG
Brian Bartalo Holley Superintendent bbartalo@holleycsd.org
Mike Bourne Brockport CSD michael.bourne@bcs1.org
Paulette Reddick Brockport CSD paulette.reddick@bcs1.org
Corey Skinner Greece CSD corey.skinner@greececsd.org
Troy Olin Gates-Chili ASI for Instruction troy_olin@gateschili.org
Jason Cline (for Scott Wilson) Churchville-Chili HS Asst. Principal jcline@cccsd.org 1
Craig Clark Alfred State University, Interim VP for Academic Affairs clarkcr@alfredstate.edu
Richard Turner RTMA rturner@rtma.org 1 1 1
Boy Coyne RTMA bcoyne@rtma.org
Robert Duffy (Ferha Roman) Rochester Chamber of Commerce rduffy@greaterrochesterchamber.com 0
Ferah Roman Director, RBA Staffing & Screening ferah.roman@rbastaffing.com 1
R. Coe Department of Labor robert.coe@labor.ny.gov 0 0
B. Clingersmith (forwarded invite) Department of Labor william.clingersmith@labor.ny.gov 0
Jason Kirchhoff Department of Labor - Associate Services Representative jason.kirchhoff@labor.ny.gov 1
Randy André Department of Labor randy.andre@labor.ny.gov 0
Renee Wilmoth (invite from Randy) Senior Employment Counselor, NYS Dept of Labor renee.wilmoth@labor.ny.gov 1
Christina Fraser (invite from Randy) Employment Counselor, NYS Dept of Labor christina.fraser@labor.ny.gov 1
Ann Shermin Hillside/ Center for Youth asherman@hillside.com

mailto:jslavny@monroe2boces.org
mailto:tschulte@monroe2boces.org
mailto:jantonac@monroe2boces.org
mailto:nouthous@monroe2boces.org
mailto:dliesega@monroe2boces.org
mailto:csmith@monroe2boces.org
mailto:snudo@monroe2boces.org
mailto:aml355@cornell.edu
mailto:gab233@cornell.edu
mailto:jh954@cornell.edu
mailto:smc226@cornell.edu
mailto:mem545@cornell.edu
mailto:dbreitung@childrensinstitute.net
mailto:mgeorge@childrensinstitute.net
mailto:abertucci@childrensinstitute.net
mailto:mlegault@hilton.k12.ny.us
mailto:analiss@monroecounty.gov
mailto:rebeccacaico@monroecounty.gov
mailto:wrotenberg@monroecc.edu
mailto:kfrench@monroecc.edu
mailto:rcole23@monroecc.edu
mailto:mwentland@livingstonassociates.com
mailto:dawn.haberer@nysed.gov
mailto:jamila_smith@urmc.rochester.edu
mailto:Stephanie_VonBacho@URMC.Rochester.edu
mailto:victoria.record@rochesterregional.org
mailto:Sheldon.Cox@RCSDK12.ORG
mailto:bbartalo@holleycsd.org
mailto:michael.bourne@bcs1.org
mailto:paulette.reddick@bcs1.org
mailto:corey.skinner@greececsd.org
mailto:troy_olin@gateschili.org
mailto:jcline@cccsd.org
mailto:clarkcr@alfredstate.edu
mailto:rturner@rtma.org
mailto:bcoyne@rtma.org
mailto:ferah.roman@rbastaffing.com
mailto:robert.coe@labor.ny.gov
mailto:william.clingersmith@labor.ny.gov
mailto:randy.andre@labor.ny.gov
mailto:renee.wilmoth@labor.ny.gov
mailto:christina.fraser@labor.ny.gov
mailto:asherman@hillside.com


Ryan Frank Skills USA Senior (WEMOCO Student) rfrank66@students.monroe2boces.org 1
Kaylin Woodin Skills USA Senior (WEMOCO Student) kwoodin22@students.monroe2boces.org 1
Shawna Gareau-Kurtz Monroe 2 BOCES, Director CWD sgareau@monroe2boces.org 1 1
Rebecca Horowitz Monroe 2 BOCES, CWD rhorowit@monroe2boces.org 1
Linda Rabjohn Monroe 2 BOCES, CWD lrabjohn@monroe2boces.org 1
Carol Lupisella Monroe 2 BOCES Teacher / CTE Parent clupisel@monroe2boces.org 1 1
Mike Ehret Monroe 1 BOCES, EMCC Principal mike_ehret@boces.monroe.edu 1 0 1
Svetlana Stowell Monroe 1 BOCES - Director of Diversity/Equity Svetlana_Stowell@boces.monroe.edu
Sean Reinhardt Special Education Consultant Teacher sean_reinhardt@boces.monroe.edu
Selene France Work Experience Coordinator selene_france@boces.monroe.edu
Cyndi Stuart Special Education Consultant Teacher cyndi_stuart@boces.monroe.edu
Cherie Becker Director, Student Programs and Services cherie_becker@boces.monroe.edu 1
Brett Provenzano Fairport Superintendent bprovenzano@fairport.org
Brian Freeman Webster Superintendent Brian_freeman@webstercsd.org
Renee Williams Honeoye Falls Lima CSD Assistant Superintendent renee.williams@hflcsd.org
Cathy Hauber Assistant Superintendent cathleen_hauber@boces.monroe.edu
Daniel White Superintendent Monroe 1 BOCES daniel_white@boces.monroe.edu
William Gregory Director of Technology william_gregory@boces.monroe.edu
Lynne Buttino EMCC School Counselor lynne_buttino@boces.monroe.edu
Dave Seeley RochesterWorks! - Executive Director dseeley@rochesterworks.org 1 1
Laura Seelman RochesterWorks! - Business Services Manager lseelman@rochesterworks.org 1 1
Lee Koslow RochesterWorks! - Technical Assistance & Training Manager lkoslow@rochesterworks.org 1
Shawanda Evans Monroe Community College - Dir of Pre Collegiate Partnerships sevans26@monroecc.edu 1
Lisa Heisman Nazareth College lheisma6@naz.edu 1
Tracy Gyoerkoe NYS TAC tracy@spnet.us 1 1 0
     INTERNAL
Brandi Gage Steves BOCES 2 - WBL bgage@monroe2boces.org 1 1 1
Lisa McConville BOCES 2- School Counselor lmcconvi@monroe2boces.org 1 1 1
Kitty Allen BOCES 2 - CTE IS Teacher callen@monroe2boces.org 1 1
Ally Sharpe BOCES 2 - IS asharpe@monroe2boces.org 1 1
Paula Boughton BOCES 2-Special Education Supervisor pboughto@monroe2boces.org 1 1 1

17 18
35

Reminder: 11/23/2021 Directions/CTE Info.: 12/8/2021
Nov 2022 Meeting:  11/30/2022 reminder 11/17/2022

mailto:rfrank66@students.monroe2boces.org
mailto:kwoodin22@students.monroe2boces.org
mailto:sgareau@monroe2boces.org
mailto:rhorowit@monroe2boces.org
mailto:lrabjohn@monroe2boces.org
mailto:clupisel@monroe2boces.org
mailto:mike_ehret@boces.monroe.edu
mailto:Svetlana_Stowell@boces.monroe.edu
mailto:sean_reinhardt@boces.monroe.edu
mailto:selene_france@boces.monroe.edu
mailto:cyndi_stuart@boces.monroe.edu
mailto:cherie_becker@boces.monroe.edu
mailto:bprovenzano@fairport.org
mailto:Brian_freeman@webstercsd.org
mailto:renee.williams@hflcsd.org
mailto:cathleen_hauber@boces.monroe.edu
mailto:daniel_white@boces.monroe.edu
mailto:william_gregory@boces.monroe.edu
mailto:lynne_buttino@boces.monroe.edu
mailto:dseeley@rochesterworks.org
mailto:lseelman@rochesterworks.org
mailto:lkoslow@rochesterworks.org
mailto:sevans26@monroecc.edu
mailto:tracy@spnet.us
mailto:bgage@monroe2boces.org
mailto:lmcconvi@monroe2boces.org
mailto:callen@monroe2boces.org
mailto:asharpe@monroe2boces.org
mailto:pboughto@monroe2boces.org


Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES School Library System 
2023-2024 Council Appointments 

District Council Member 
Brockport Jennifer Nather, School Library Media Specialist (term expires 2024) 

Pending paperwork 
Ginther Elementary School 
40 Allen Street 
Brockport, N.Y.  14420 

Churchville-Chili Sarah Wergin, School Library Media Specialist (PENDING Approval) 
SLS Council Chair 
Churchville Chili High School 
5786 Buffalo Rd 
Churchville, NY 14428  

Gates Chili Matt Harvey, School Library Media Specialist (term expires 2025) 
Paul Road Elementary School 
571 Paul Rd 
Rochester, NY 14624 

Greece Rachel Goforth, School Library Media Specialist (term expires 2025) 
Olympia High School 
1139 Maiden Lane 
Rochester, NY  14615 

Hilton Angela Boccuzzi-Reichert, School Library Media Specialist (term expires 2024) 
Pending paperwork 
Merton Williams Middle School 
200 School Lane 
Hilton, N.Y.  14468 

Holley Lisa Osur, School Library Media Specialist (term expires 2025) 
Holley JR/SR High School 
3800 North Main Street 
Holley, N.Y.  14470 

Kendall  Alicia Charland School Library Media Specialist (term expires 2025) 
Kendall Central School District 
16887 Roosevelt Highway 
Kendall, NY  14476 

Non Public Laura Shea (term expires 2025) 
School Northstar Christian Academy 

332 Spencerport Rd 
Rochester, NY 14606 



Spencerport Jessica Wiedenhofer, School Library Media Specialist (term expires 2026) 
Spencerport Cosgrove Middle School 
2749 Spencerport Road 
Spencerport, N.Y.  14559 

Wheatland-Chili Jennifer Voight, School Library Media Specialist (term expires 2024) 
Pending paperwork 
TJ Connor Elementary School 
13 Beckwith Ave 
Scottsville, NY 14546 

Community Council Member 
Rochester Regional Tina Broomfield, Member Services Librarian 
Library Council  Rochester Regional Library Council 

3445 Winton Place, Suite 204 
Rochester, N.Y.  14623 

Monroe County Tonia Burton, Children’s Services Consultant 
Library System  Monroe County Library System 

115 South Avenue 
Rochester, N.Y.   14604 

SUNY Brockport Jennifer Kegler, Associate Librarian / Library Instruction Coordinator 
Academic Librarian SUNY Brockport 

350 New Campus Drive 
Brockport NY, 14220 

Communication and Technology Services 
Library Automation TBD 

Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES 
3625 Buffalo Road 
Rochester, N.Y.  14624 

Media Library Lindsay Neumire, Instructional Technology Media Specialist 
Monroe 2 Orleans BOCES  
3625 Buffalo Road 
Rochester, N.Y.  14624 

School Library System Jim Belair, Coordinator, School Library Services 
Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES 
3625 Buffalo Road 
Rochester, N.Y.  14624 



1. Call the Regular Meeting to Order



2. Agenda Item(s) Modifications



3. Public Hearing 2023-24 Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES District
Wide School Safety Plan (SAVE)



4. Approval of Minutes: June 21, 2023 Regular Meeting
Minutes



June 21, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 1 of 7 
 
 
 
 

BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL 

SERVICES SECOND SUPERVISORY DISTRICT 

COUNTIES OF MONROE AND ORLEANS 

 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Cooperative Educational Services, Second 

Supervisory District of Monroe and Orleans Counties, held on May 10, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. at the 

Richard E. Ten Haken Educational Services Center, Spencerport, New York 14559. 
 

Members Present: 

  Dennis Laba, President     Trina Lorentz 

 R. Charles Phillips, Vice-President   Gerald Maar 

Kathleen Dillon      Michael May 

       Heather Pyke 

           

Members Absent: John Abbott, Cindy Dawson 
 

Staff Present: 

Jo Anne Antonacci Karen Brown 

Stephen Dawe    Marijo Pearson 

Ian Hildreth    Steve Roland  

Kelly Mutschler     Thomas Schulte 

                          

1. Call the Meeting to Order 

        The meeting was called to order by President Laba at 6:00 p.m. 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3. Agenda Modifications  -  None  

 

4. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolved: To Approve the Minutes of the May 10, 2023, Meeting Minutes as presented. 

 Moved by K, Dillon, seconded by G. Maar; passed unanimously. 
 

5. Public Interaction – There was no public interaction. 
 

6. Financial Reports 

 Resolved: To Accept the Treasurer’s Report as presented 

 Moved by M. May, seconded by K. Dillon; passed unanimously. 
 

 Resolved:  To Accept the WinCap Report as presented 

 Moved by K. Dillon, seconded by M. May; passed unanimously. 

 

Cynthia Medley-Evanetski was introduced to take questions about the internal 

claims report. Board President Dennis Laba had no questions but complimented 

Cindy on a job well done. Cindy left the meeting at 6:07 p.m. 
 

7. Audit Committee  

Resolved:   To Approve May 10 Audit Committee Meeting Minutes 



June 21, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 7 
 
 
 
 

Moved by G. Maar; seconded by T. Lorentz; passed unanimously. 
 

8. Old Business – Resolution to Approve Revised 2023-24 Board Meeting Dates  

Moved by C. Phillips; seconded by G. Maar; passed unanimously. 

 

9. New Business 
 

1. Resolved:  To Approve 2023-24 Fair Share Lease Template as presented 

 Moved by M. May, seconded by K. Dillon; passed unanimously. 
 

2. Resolved:  To Approve 2023-24 Preschool Classroom Lease Template as presented 

 Moved by M. May, seconded by K. Dillon; passed unanimously. 
 

3. Resolved: To Authorize Funding the Career Technical Education Equipment Reserve Fund up to 

$100,000  

 Moved by M. May, seconded by K. Dillon; passed unanimously. 
 

4. Resolved:   To Authorize Funding the Teachers’ Retirement Contribution Reserve Sub-Fund up 

to $415,529 

Moved by M. May, seconded by K. Dillon; passed unanimously. 
 

5. Resolved:  To Authorize Funding the Retirement Contribution Reserve Fund up to 

$1,000,000.00  

Moved by M. May, seconded by K. Dillon; passed unanimously. 
 

6. Resolved:   To Establish Insurance Reserve Fund 

Moved by M. May, seconded by K. Dillon; passed unanimously. 
 

7. Resolved:   To  Authorize Funding the Insurance Reserve Fund up to $300,000 

Moved by M. May, seconded by K. Dillon; passed unanimously. 

 

8. Resolved:   To Re-establish Liability Reserve Fund  

Moved by M. May, seconded by K. Dillon; passed unanimously. 

 

9. Resolved:   To Authorize Funding the Liability Reserve Fund up to $100,000 

Moved by M. May, seconded by K. Dillon; passed unanimously. 

 

10. Resolved:   To Accept Risk Assessment for the Year Ending June 30, 2023 

 Moved by K. Dillon, seconded by G. Maar; passed unanimously. 

 

11. WHEREAS, the Monroe 2-Orleans Board of Cooperative Educational Services (the "BOCES") is 

proposing a capital project to include renovations, alterations, and improvements to the 

Educational Services Center located at the BOCES campus at 3599 Big Ridge Road, Spencerport, 

New York 14599, including: (1) installation of new interior, cross-corridor wall and doors and 

associated access control door hardware; (2) replacement of existing interior entrance vestibule 

doors and access control hardware; (3) installation of new security film on existing exterior and 

interior doors and windows; ( 4) installation of access control equipment and components; and (5) 

patching of existing interior floor, walls, and ceiling as required due to new wall construction; 

collectively referred to hereafter as the "Project"; and 

 



June 21, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 7 
 
 
 
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with applicable law and procedure, the BOCES has reviewed the 

Project in light of the requirements to do so under the New York State Environmental Quality 

Review Act, Article 8 of the New York Environmental Conservation Law and its applicable 

regulations, 6 NYCRR 617 et seq. ("SEQRA"); and  

 

WHEREAS, the BOCES has considered the impact on the environment of the Project as set forth 

in more detail below by undertaking a thorough review of conditions and issues associated with 

construction and development of the Project, Moved by K. Dillon, seconded by H. Pyke; passed 

unanimously. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

1. The BOCES has determined that the Project entails routine activities of an educational 

institution, and/or reconstruction of or expansion of a facility, and such work is otherwise 

encompassed by criteria set forth in 6 NYCRR Section 617 .5 ( c ), and specifically, 6 

NYCRR 617.5 (c) (1), (2), and/or (10) and therefore the Project constitutes a Type II Action 

under SEQRA. 

2. As a Type II Action, the Project is not subject to review under SEQRA as it is been deemed 

to not have a potentially significant adverse impact on the environment. 

3. The statements in the whereas clauses in this resolution shall have the same force and effect 

as the statements set out in this now resolved portion of the resolution. 

4. This Resolution has been prepared in accordance with Article 8 of the New York 

Environmental Conservation Law and associated regulations to .be adopted by the Monroe 2-

Orleans BOCES Board, with offices located at 3599 Big Ridge Road, Spencerport, New York 

14599. 

5. This resolution shall take effect immediately and the requirements of SEQRA have been 

satisfied. 

Moved by K. Dillon, seconded by H. Pyke; passed unanimously 

 

12. WHEREAS, the Board of the Monroe 2-Orleans Board of Cooperative Educational Services 

("BOCES"), plans to undertake a capital improvement project (the "Project") consisting of 

renovations, alterations, and improvements to the Educational Services Center located at the 

BOCES campus at 3599 Big Ridge Road, Spencerport, New York 14599, including: (1) 

installation of new interior, cross-corridor wall and doors and associated access control door 

hardware; (2) replacement of existing interior entrance vestibule doors and access control 

hardware; (3) installation of new security film on existing exterior and interior doors and 

windows; (4) installation of access control equipment and components; and (5) patching of 

existing interior floor, walls, and ceiling as required due to new wall construction; and  

 

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted June 21, 2023 immediately prior to consideration of this 

resolution, the BOCES Board determined that: (1) the Project constituted a Type II action 

within the meaning of the New York Environmental Quality Review Act and the regulations of 

the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation adopted thereunder (6 

N.Y.C.R.R. Part 617) (collectively "SEQRA"); and (2) no further review is needed as the 

Project has been deemed to not have a potentially significant adverse impact on the 

environment.  

 

NOW, BE IT RESOLVED, that the BOCES Board hereby authorizes the undertaking of the 

Project at cost not to exceed Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000) and the funding of 



June 21, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 7 
 
 
 
 

such cost through the expenditure of component district annual capital contributions. Moved by  

 

M. May, seconded by G. Maar; passed unanimously. 

 

13. Resolved:   To Approve Intermunicipal Agreement with Monroe County for Reimbursement of 

COVID-19 Testing Expenses  

Moved by M. May, seconded by K. Dillon; passed unanimously 

14. Resolved:   To Authorize Participation in the NYCLASS Program 

Moved by G. Maar, seconded by H. Pyke; passed unanimously. 

 

15. Resolved:   To Approve Chemical Hygiene Plan for 2023-24 School Year 

Moved by K. Dillon, seconded by G. Maar; passed unanimously. 

 

16. Resolved:   To Accept Donation of Various Computer Cables, Routers, Switches from Wealth 

Enhancement Group 

Moved by M. May, seconded by K. Dillon; passed unanimously. 

 

17. Resolved:   To Accept Donation of Bundles of Asphalt Shingles from B and L Wholesale 

Moved by M. May, seconded by K. Dillon; passed unanimously. 

 

18. Resolved:   To Accept Donation of Plywood from Saint-Gobain ADFORDS, Inc. 

Moved by M. May, seconded by K. Dillon; passed unanimously. 

 

19. Resolved:   To Accept Donation of Expiring Dental Materials 

Moved by M. May, seconded by K. Dillon; passed unanimously. 
 

10. Personnel and Staffing 

1. Resolved: To Approve the Personnel and Staffing Agenda as presented 

           Moved by C. Phillips; seconded G. Maar; passed unanimously. 
 

2. Resolved:   That the Board approves the Agreement between the District Superintendent of 

Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES and the Director of Operations and Maintenance for the period of July 

1, 2023 – June 30, 2024, as presented.   

 Moved by G. Maar, seconded by K. Dillon; passed unanimously 
 

11. Bids/Lease Purchases   

Resolved: To accept the bid recommendations and awarding of the following bids and 

lease purchases as presented: 

 

1. COOPERATIVE PEST CONTROL SERVICES   Bid #RFB-2048-23   

    Cimex Pest Services  $5,040.00  

 

2. Industrial Portable Racking Carts Bid #RFB-2051-23   

 LCI Industrial Inc.  $29,648.80 

 

3. WHEREAS, It is the plan of a number of BOCES districts in New York, to consent to jointly enter 

into an agreement for the 2023 – 2024 fiscal year, for 3D Bear, 3DUX Design, 7 Mindsets 

Academy, A+ Educators (dba Woz U Education), ABRe.IO, Accelerate Learning, Achieve3000, 

Age of Learning Inc, American Reading, Amplify Education Inc., Apple (Opt-in), Be Published, 



June 21, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 5 of 7 
 
 
 
 

 Beable Education, BK Interactive, BlocksCAD, Blocksi, Bloomboard, Bloom Learning, Brain 

Pop, Branching Minds, Breakout EDU, Bridges Transitions, Canva US Inc., Capstone, 

 Carasoft, CDW, CharmTech Labs LLC, Classcraft, Code Monkey, Code.org, Coder Kids Inc. (dba 

Codelicious), Codesters, Committee for Children, Cordance Operations, Curriculum Associates, 

Dell Advanced Learning Partnerships Firm, Defined Learning, Desmos, Digital Teaching Tools, 

Dreambox, Drone Sports Inc., DroneBlocks LLC, Dropbox, EBSCO, Ed for Tech, Edmentum, 

EdPuzzle, Educational Vistas, EduPlanet, eDynamic Learning, Electronic Gaming Federation, 

Elemetari LLC, EliteGamingLive, Empower U, eSpark, EverFi, ExcelSoft, Explore Learning, 

Formative, Frontline, Gale, Grammar Flip, Great Minds PBC, Gynzy, Harris Education, Hello 

World CS, High School Esports League, Hiperware Labs, Hive Class Inc., Houghton Mifflin, 

iDesign, Imagine Learning, Immersed Games, Impero, In position Technologies, Infobase 

Holding, Instructure, Isafe, iStation, IXL Learning, JZA Training Systems INC, Kahoot! ASA, 

Khan Academy, Kinems, Labster, Learnics, Learning.com, Learning A-Z, Learning Ally, Learning 

Without Tears, Legends of Learning, Lego Education, Lexia Learning, Linewize, Linkit, Logisoft, 

Mad-Learn, Maia Learning, Makers Empire, Manage Mindfully, Marzano Evaluation, Math 

Space, McGraw Hill, Mind Research Institute, Moby Max, MooZoom Education Inc., Mr. Elmer, 

Music First, NASEF, Nearpod, NeuroMaker, Neuron Fuel, Newsela, NextWave Stem, No RedInk, 

Notable, NS4ed LLC, NWEA, Pasco Scientific, Passport for Good, Pearson, Performance 

Learning Systems (dba PLS 3rd Learning), Pixton Comics, Play Vs Inc., Power My Learning, 

PowerSchool, QuaverEd, Quizizz Inc., Reading Horizons, Renaissance Learning, Rethink ED, 

REX Academy, Right Reason Technologies, Ripple Effects, Robot Lab, Rocket Drones Inc., 

Rubicon West Inc., SAI Interactive, SAVVAS, SchoolBinder, SchooLinks, Scoir, Scrible Inc., 

SeeSaw Learning, SkillStruck, SkyOP, Small Factory Innovations, Smart Science, Soundtrap, 

Standard for Success, STEM SIMS, Suntex, Tech4Learning, Tech Row, TEQ, The Language 

Express, Thimble.io, Think Tech Solutions, Thrive Academics, Tools For Schools, UpSavvy, 

VidCode, VIVI LLC, Wakelet, Waterford, WeVideo, WhyMaker, World Book Inc., Xello, XSel  

 

 WHEREAS, the Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES is desirous of participating with other BOCES 

 Districts in New York State in joint agreements for the software/learning packages and licensing 

mentioned above as authorized by General Municipal Law, Section 119-0, and, 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, that the Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES Board authorizes  

 Erie 1 BOCES to represent it in all matters leading up to and entering into a contract 

 for the purchase of and licensing of the above mentioned software/learning 

 packages, and record training sessions in Zoom and post those recorded sessions to the 

consortium, and, 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES Board agrees to 

 assume its equitable share of the costs associated with Erie 1 BOCES negotiating the Agreements, 

and, 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES Board agrees 

 (1) to abide by majority decisions of the participating BOCES on quality standards;  

 (2) Erie 1 BOCES will negotiate contracts according to the majority recommendations; 

 (3) that after contract agreement, it will conduct all purchasing arrangements directly with the 

vendor. 

 

4. WHEREAS, It is the plan of a number of BOCES districts in New York, to consent to jointly enter 



June 21, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 6 of 7 
 
 
 
 

into an agreement for the 2023-2024 fiscal year for Air Tutors, BookNook Inc., Brainfuse Inc., 

Desire to Learn, Edmentum, eDoctrina, Educere, Florida Virtual School, Focal Point, Focus Care, 

Imagine Learning, Instructure, iTutor.com, Kaltura, Mango Languages, MGRM Pinnacle, My VR 

Spot, OTUS, Panopto, Paper Education America, Pearson, PowerSchool, Remind 101 Inc., Right 

Reason, Skooler, Spider Learning, Stride, Tutor Me Education, Varsity Tutors for Schools, Yuja, 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES is desirous of participating with other BOCES 

 Districts in New York State in joint agreements for the distance learning student courses 

mentioned above as authorized by General Municipal Law, Section 119-0, and, 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, that the Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES Board authorizes Erie 1 BOCES  

 to represent it in all matters leading up to and entering into a contract for the purchase of and 

licensing of the above mentioned courses, and record training sessions in Zoom and post those 

recorded sessions to the consortium, and, 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES Board agrees to 

 assume its equitable share of the costs associated with Erie 1 BOCES negotiating the Agreements, 

and, 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES Board agrees 

 (1) to abide by majority decisions of the participating BOCES on quality standards;  

 (2) Erie 1 BOCES will negotiate contracts according to the majority recommendations; 

 (3) that after contract agreement, it will conduct all purchasing arrangements directly with the 

vendor. 

  Moved by K. Dillon, seconded by M. May; passed unanimously.   

 

12. Executive Officer’s Report  

District Superintendent Retreat will be June 25-27. Capital Region District Superintendent Anita 

Murphy retired, and her position has been filled. Wayne-Finger Lakes DS Vicky Ramos retires at the 

end of the school year.  The board has decided on a closed search. The Search closing date is July 

10, 2023. Hoping to have a DS in place by November 1, 2023, or sooner. 

 

Assistant Superintendent for Instructional Programs Tom Schulte is working on a suspension 

program as a service for our components. This will include a social/emotional component. 

 

Spencerport superintendent Kristin Swann resigned effective June 30, 2023. Ty Zinkiewich as been 

appointed to the position effective July 1, 2023.   

 

Marijo Pearson was recognized by her colleagues across the state with the Jane Bullowa Leadership 

and Service Award for individuals whose accomplishments have improved the field of education in 

New York State.  Laura McNally was a runner-up and recipient of the Better Beginnings Award 

recognizing elementary teachers who are gifted in finding and nurturing the strengths of each 

individual student. 

 

BOCES 2 will host a hiring event on July 11 from 3:00-7:00 pm.  There are openings in CTE and 

Special Ed and we are working on filling those positions. 

 



June 21, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 7 of 7 

Year-end celebrations are happening all month. Over 100 people attended the Retiree Reception 

which included an informational session from Excellus and time to reconnect with former 

colleagues.  

SEPTO Fair was a big success with the support of the West Central Kiwanis. 

13. Committee Reports –   There were no committee meetings.

14. Upcoming Meetings/Calendar Events: The various meetings for the month were listed

in the agenda. 

15. Other items – none

16. At 6:38 p.m. a motion was made by K. Dillon to adjourn to Executive Session, seconded by J.

Abbott; passed unanimously.

Respectfully Submitted,

Kelly Mutschler 

Board Clerk 

At 7:03. a motion was made by M. May, seconded by G. Maar to come out of Executive Session; 

passed unanimously. 

17. Adjournment

At 7:03 a motion was made by K. Dillon to adjourn the meeting, seconded by C. Phillips; passed

unanimously.

Respectfully Submitted,

Jo Anne L. Antonacci 

Clerk Pro Tem 



5. Public Interaction 
 
  



6. Financial Reports 
1. Resolution to Accept Treasurer’s Report 
2. Resolution to Accept WinCap Report 
3. Internal Claims Log 

 
  

















7.  Audit Committee Update 
 1. Resolution to Approve Minutes of the June 21, 2023 

    Audit Committee Meeting   
  
  





8. New Business
1. First Reading 2023-24 District-Wide School Safety 

Plan (S.A.V.E.)



Monroe 2–Orleans BOCES
DISTRICT-WIDE SCHOOL SAFETY PLAN

2023-2024



Introduction ..................................................................... 1
• Summary	of	Laws

Risk Reduction/Prevention and Intervention ............... 3

• Prevention/Intervention	Strategies
• Training,	Drills	and	Exercises
• Implementation	of	School	Security
• Vital	Educational	Agency	Information
• Early	Detection	of	Potentially	Violent	Behaviors
• Hazard	Identification

District Resources and Contacts ................................... 5

• Emergency	Operations	Group
• District	Superintendent’s	Cabinet
• Command	Post
• District	Data	and	Contacts
• District-Wide	School	Safety	Team

General Response Procedures and Actions for 
Emergency ...................................................................... 6

• Concept	of	Operations
• Organization	and	Assignment	of	Responsibilities
• Direction,	Control,	and	Coordination
• Information	Collection,	Analysis	and	Dissemination
• Administration,	Finance	and	Logistics
• Authorities	and	References
• Communications
• Multi-Hazard	Response
• Emergency	Notifications
• Responses	to	Acts	of	Violence:	Implied	or	Direct	Threats
• Acts	of	Violence
• Specific	Response	Protocols
• Obtaining	Advice	and	Assistance	from	Local	Government
• District	Resources	Available	for	use	in	an	Emergency
• Functional	Annexes
• Crime	Scene	Management
• Emergency	Evacuation	of	Non-Ambulatory	Disabled
Individuals	with	Disabilities

• Accounting	for	All	Persons
• Family	Reunification	Plans
• Crises	Occurring	Outside	of	Normal	School	Hours
• Procedures	for	Informing	Other	Educational	Agencies	of	an
Emergency

• Procedures	for	School	Cancellation
• Procedures	for	Sheltering	Students,	Staff,	and	Visitors
• Continuity	of	Operations	Plan	(COOP)
• Recovery

Threat and Hazard Planning Guidelines ..................... 15

• Introduction	and	Potential	Hazards
• Planning	Assumptions	and	Limitations
• Initial	Response

Medical Emergencies and Mental Health ................. 17

Building-Level Emergency Response Plan (ERP) ....... 18

• Plan	Development	and	Maintenance
• Distribution	of	the	Plan
• Record	of	Distribution

Emergency Closings .................................................... 19

• Closings	Procedure
• Early	Dismissal	Procedure

Responses for Specific Emergencies........................... 22
• School	Cancellation
• Early	Dismissal
• Evacuation
• Sheltering	Sites	(internal	and	external)
• Lockout
• Lockdown
• Threats	of	violence
• Early	Warning	Signs	for	Students	at	Risk	of	Committing
School	Violence

• Procedures	for	Responding	to	Acts	of	Violence
• Intruders
• Armed	Student/Intruder
• Kidnapping/Hostage	Taking
• Severe	Weather
• Civil	Disturbance
• Student	Transportation	Incident
• Gas	Leak
• Bomb	Threat
• Chemical	Spill
• Fire/Explosion
• Biological	Threat
• Radiological	Threat
• Epidemic
• Mental	Health	Warning	Signs

Public Health Emergency Continuation of 

District Resources Inventory ....................................... 32 

Table of Contents

Health and Safety Team ............................................. 33 

Operations Plan ............................................................26
• Declaration
• Purpose, Scope, Situation Overview, and Assumptions
• Concept of Operations
• Mission Essential Functions
• Emergency Remote Instruction Plan (ERI)
• Essential Functions
• Reducing Risk Through Remote Work and Staggered

Shifts
• Personal Protective Equipment
• Staff Exposures, Cleaning, and Disinfection
• Employee and Contractor Leave
• Documentation of Work Hours and Locations
• Housing for Essential Employees



1

School	safety	is	the	job	of	the	entire	school	community.	
This	effort	requires	leadership	and	coordination	by	school	
administration,	and	involvement	and	participation	from	
all	sectors	of	the	school	community.	Planning,	conducting	
drills,	and	participating	in	exercises	with	law	enforcement,	
fire,	emergency	officials	and	other	members	of	the	school	
community	ensures	a	comprehensive,	unified	approach	to	
school	emergency	response	planning.	Building	relationships	
and	community	engagement	are	vital	to	building	a	safer	school	
community.

The	purpose	of	the	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	District-Wide	
Safety	Plan	and	each	school’s	Emergency	Response	Plan	
(ERP)	is	to	help	school/site	officials	identify	and	respond	to	
potential	emergencies	by	assigning	responsibilities	and	duties	
of	the	school	employees,	students,	families,	and	community	
stakeholders.	It	is	important	to	develop,	maintain,	train	and	
exercise	ERPs	in	order	to	respond	quickly	before,	during	and	
after	an	incident.	A	well-developed	and	practiced	ERP	provides	
parents/guardians	and	the	community	reassurance	that	the	
school	has	established	guidelines	and	procedures	to		
respond	to	threats	and	hazards	efficiently	and	effectively.	
Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	uses	the	New	York	State		
suggested	planning	format	to	assist	schools	in	meeting	
legislative	mandates	contained	in	8	NYCRR	Section	155.17	
and	provides	the	use	of	best	practices	to	improve	outcomes	
following	emergency	situations.

The	content,	organization,	and	terminology	provided	in	
the	New	York	State	Guide	to	School	Emergency	Response	
Planning	aligns	with	the	Federal	Emergency	Management	
Agency’s	“Guide	for	Developing	High-Quality	School	
Emergency	Operations	Plans	(2013)”.	The	organization	of	this	
guide	supports	two	key	practices	being	adopted	in	New	York	
State.	First,	the	guide	provides	standardized	language	that	is	
consistent	with	current	national	emergency	response	protocols.	
Secondly,	consistent	formatting	in	each	Building	ERP	aligns	
critical	information	necessary	to	improve	rapid	response	to	
emergencies	together	in	the	following	sections:

•The	Basic	Plan
• Functional	Annexes
•Threat/Hazard	Specific	Annexes
• Appendices

The	Basic	Plan	standardizes	language	and	provides	a	structured	
framework	for	school	ERPs	statewide.	Individualized	policies	and	
procedures	have	been	developed	by	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	
based	on	potential	circumstances	and	resources.	Tools	to	manage	
an	emergency	include	response	procedures	that	are	developed	
through	threat	assessments,	safety	audits,	planning,	and	training	
before	an	incident	occurs.	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	uses	the	
recommended	New	York	State	Functional	Annexes	in	order	
to	standardize	the	terminology	used	by	district	employees	and	
emergency	responders	during	an	emergency.

Functional	annexes	focus	on	critical	operational	functions	and	
the	courses	of	action	developed	to	carry	them	out.

Actions	and	best	practices	are	outlined	in	each	of	the	
Building	Plans	Threat/Hazard	Annexes	section,	detail	what	
to	do	in	the	event	of	various	emergencies.	These	ERPs	
provide	current	information	about	school/site	response	team	
members,	students	and	staff	with	special	needs	and	any	other	
information	critical	to	each	school	building.	The	BOCES	has	
also	identified	appropriate	staff	to	fill	specific	roles	related	to	
incident	command	and	appropriate	response	teams.	All	of	the	
building	principals,	assistant	principals,	directors,	supervisors	
and	other	key	BOCES	members	have	been	trained	in	the	
Incident	Command	System.	The	BOCES	has	also	appointed	
a	Chief	Emergency	Officer	as	required	in	order	to	coordinate	
and	communicate	between	staff	and	law	enforcement	and	first	
responders.	The	Chief	Emergency	Officer	is	responsible	for	
ensuring	the	completion	and	yearly	update	of	the	Building-
Level	Emergency	Response	Plans.	All	Building-Level	
Emergency	Response	Plans	are	confidential	but	are	submitted	
to	New	York	State	and	local	emergency	responders	for	review.	
Appropriate	training	and	drilling	is	required	to	ensure	that	all	
district	personnel	and	students	understand	the	plan	and	their	
roles	and	responsibilities.

SUMMARY OF LAWS

The	following	is	a	summary	of	New	York	State	law	pertaining	
to	building	level	school	emergency	response	plans.	In	2000,	
Chapter	181	enacted	Education	Law	§2801-a	(Project	
SAVE)	requiring	the	implementation	of	certain	school	
safety	plans.	Education	Law	§2801-a	required	that	every	
school	district,	Board	of	Cooperative	Educational	Services	
(BOCES)	and	county	vocational	education	extension	board,	
as	well	as	the	Chancellor	of	the	City	School	District	of	the	
City	of	New	York,	develop	a	building-level	school	safety	
plan	regarding	crisis	intervention	and	emergency	response	
(“school	emergency	response	plan”).	Section	2801-a,	prescribed	
minimum	requirements	of	a	school	emergency	response	
plan,	which	included	policies	and	procedures	relating	to	
responding	to	certain	threats.	These	plans	were	designed	to	
prevent	or	minimize	the	effects	of	emergencies	and	to	facilitate	
the	coordination	of	schools	and	school	districts	with	local	
and	county	resources	in	the	event	of	such	emergencies.	The	
Commissioner	of	the	New	York	State	Education	Department,	
prescribed	requirements	into	regulation	8	NYCRR	Section	
155.17.

155.17	(b)	Development	of	school	safety	plans.	Every	board	
of	education	of	a	school	district,	every	board	of	cooperative	
educational	services	and	county	vocation	education	and	
extension	board	and	the	chancellor	of	the	City	School	District	
of	the	City	of	New	York	Shall	adopt	by	July	1,	2001,	and	
shall	update	by	July	1st	of	each	succeeding	year,	a	district-
wide	school	safety	plan	and	building	level	school	safety	plans	
regarding	crisis	intervention	and	emergency	response	and	
management.

Introduction



2

155.17	(e)(2)	School	Emergency	Response	Plan.	A	school	
emergency	response	plan	shall	be	developed	by	the	building-level	
school	safety	team	and	shall	include	the	following	elements:

• 155.17	(e)(2)(i)	Policies	and	Procedures	for	Safe	Evacuation
• 155.17	(e)(2)(ii)	Designation	of	Response	Teams
• 155.17	(e)(2)(iii)	Procedures	for	Emergency	Responder	Access
to	Building	Plans	and	Road	Maps

• 155.17	(e)(2)(iv)	Communication	in	Emergencies
• 155.17	(e)(2)(v)	Definition	of	the	Chain	of	Command
Consistent	with	NIMS/ICS

• 155.17	(e)(2)(vi)	Coordinated	Plan	for	Disaster	Mental	Health
Services

• 155.17	(e)(2)(vii)	Procedures	for	Annual	Review
• 155.17	(e)(2)(vii)	Procedures	for	the	Conduct	of	Drills
• 155.17	(e)(2)(viii)	Procedures	for	Restricting	Access	to	Crime
Scenes

155.17	(e)(3)	A	copy	of	each	building-level	safety	plan	and	any	
amendments	thereto,	shall	be	filed	with	the	appropriate	local	law	
enforcement	agency	and	with	the	State	Police	within	30	days	of	
adoption.

155.17	(j)	Drills.	Each	school	district	and	board	of	cooperative	
educational	services	shall,	at	least	once	every	school	year,	and	
where	possible	in	cooperation	with	local	county	emergency	
preparedness	officials,	conduct	one	test	of	its	emergency	plan	
or	its	emergency	response	procedures	under	each	of	its	building	
level	school	safety	plans,	including	sheltering	or	early	dismissal.

Introduction
155.17(c)(1)(xxi)(a) Policies and procedures to ensure 
computing devices will be made available to students or other 
means by which students will participate in synchronous 
instruction.

155.17(c)(1)(xxi)(a) Policies and procedures to ensure 
students receiving remote instruction under emergency 
conditions will access internet connectivity.

155.17(c)(1)(xxi)(b) Expectations for school staff as to the 
proportion of time spent in synchronous and asynchronous 
instruction of students on days of remote instruction under 
emergency conditions with an expectation that asynchronous 
instruction is supplementary to synchronous instruction.

155.17(c)(1)(xxi)(c) A description of how instruction will 
occur for those students for whom remote instruction by 
digital technology is not available or appropriate.

155.17(c)(1)(xxi)(d) A description of how special education 
and related services will be provided to students with 
disabilities and preschool students with disabilities, as 
applicable, in accordance with their individualized education 
programs to ensure the continued provision of a free 
appropriate public education.

For school districts that receive foundation aid, the estimated 
number of instructional hours the school district intends to 
claim for State aid purposes for each day spent in remote 
instruction due to emergency conditions pursuant to section 
175.5 of this Chapter.



3

A. Prevention/Intervention Strategies

Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	administration	believes	that	
improved	communication	among	students,	parents/guardians,	
and	school	staff	adds	to	the	quality	of	life	and	sense	of	safety	
at	all	of	our	schools.	Such	communication	allows	for	the	
reporting,	intervention,	and	prevention	of	potentially	violent	
incidents	before	they	actually	occur.	The	following	is	a	brief	list	
of	programs	and	initiatives	that	are	in	place	at	some	or	all	of	the	
BOCES	schools/sites	that	promote	open	communication	and	
have	a	positive	impact	on	the	quality	of	life	in	our	schools:

• Positive	Behavioral	Interventions	and	Supports	(PBIS)
• Bullying	Reporting	Process
• Peer	Mediation
• Therapeutic	Crisis	Intervention	Training
• Life	Space	Training
• Social	Skills	Instruction
• Trauma,	Illness	and	Grief	(TIG)	Teams
• National	Incident	Management	System	(NIMS)
• Incident	Command	System	(ICS)
• NY	Safe	School	Training
• Counselors,	childcare	providers,	youth	assistants	and	social
workers	on	each	campus	to	develop	rapport	with	students

Strategies	for	improving	communication	among	students	and	
between	students	and	staff	and	reporting	of	potentially	violent	
incidents,	such	as	the	establishment	of:
• Youth	advocacy	programs,	such	as,	SkillsUSA,	National
Technical	Honor	Society	and	Special	Education	Parent
Teacher	Organization	(SEPTO)

• Conflict	resolution
• Forums	and/or	designating	a	mentor	for	students	concerned
with	bullying	or	violence

• Anonymous	reporting	mechanisms	for	school	violence
• Staffed	on-site	student	support	systems,	i.e.,	counselors,	social
workers,	child	care	workers

B. Training, Drills, and Exercises

Training
Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	understands	the	importance	of	
training.	All	school/site	staff,	students,	and	others	deemed	
appropriate	by	the	school/site	shall	receive	training	during	the	
school	year	to	better	prepare	them	for	an	incident.	The	annual	
training	will	review	the	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES		
District-Wide	School	Safety	Plan,	individual	ERPs,	and	brief	
staff	on	their	roles	and	communication	procedures	during	
an	emergency.	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	also	submits	
certification	to	the	NYSED	that	all	district	and	school/site	
staff	have	undergone	annual	training	components	on	violence	
prevention	and	mental	health.	New	employees	hired	after	the	
start	of	the	school	year	receive	training	within	30	days	of	hire.	
All	other	staff	will	receive	this	training	by	Sept.	15	of	each	
school	year.

Multi-Hazard Training
Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	will	provide	annual	multi-hazard	
school	safety	training	for	staff	and	students.	The	components	
of	this	training	will	be	consistent	throughout	the	BOCES.	
Staff	training	will	be	routinely	conducted	at	the	building/
staff	level	followed	by	drills	with	the	entire	school	population.	
These	drills	will	focus	on	our	standard	response	actions	to	a	
potentially	threatening	incident	to	include:	early	dismissal,	lock	
down	procedures,	hold-in-place	procedures,	shelter-in-place	
procedures,	lockout	procedures	and	evacuations.	The	use	of	
tabletop	drills	to	accomplish	or	complement	this	training	will	
be	considered	when	live	drills	are	impractical	or	not	sufficient	to	
meet	the	training	goals.

Drills and Exercises
At	a	minimum,	schools	will	conduct	the	following	exercises/
drills	annually:

• Section	807	of	the	Education	Law	mandates	12	emergency
drills	each	school	year	to	prepare	students	to	be	able	to
respond	appropriately	in	the	event	of	a	sudden	emergency.	
The	statute	requires	that	four	of	the	12	drills	be	lock-down-
drills.	The	remaining	eight	are	evacuation	drills.	Eight	of	the
required	12	drills	must	be	completed	by	Dec.	31.

• 8	NYCRR	Section155.17	€(3)	states	each	Building-Level
Emergency	Response	Plan	shall	be	tested	including	sheltering
and	early	dismissal	(no	earlier	than	15	minutes	before	normal
dismissal).	The	district	will	ensure	that	each	building	conducts
drills	and	other	exercises	to	test	the	components	of	their
Building-Level	Emergency	Response	Plan

• One	lockdown	drill	will	be	conducted	in	the	first	marking
period	and	three	lockdown	drills	will	be	unannounced
following	the	first	announced	drill

• Lockdown	drills	will	be	conducted	internally	to	ensure
that	school/site	staff	have	the	ability	to	secure	the	facility
and	students	against	an	immediate	threat	to	life	and	safety.	
Such	drills	will	cause	minimal	interruption	to	academic
activities	and	will	involve	the	clearance	of	hallways,	locking
of	classrooms	and	positioning	of	students	and	staff	in	pre-
designated	“safe	areas”	within	each	room.	Where	possible,	the
school/site	should	seek	out	opportunities	to	conduct	full-scale
response	exercises	with	law	enforcement

• Whenever	a	lockdown	drill	is	conducted,	whether	announced
or	unannounced,	the	school	will	notify	local	law	enforcement
and/or	the	regional	911	Emergency	Dispatch	Center	prior	to
and	at	the	conclusion	of	the	drill.	This	will	be	done	to	ensure
that	law	enforcement	does	not	receive	a	false	report	that	the
school/site	is	in	actual	lockdown.	Any	announcements	made
during	a	drill	will	be	preceded	and	ended	with	the	phrase
“this	is	a	drill”.	This	will	ensure	that	all	involved	recognize
that	this	is	a	drill	and	not	a	real	incident.	Additionally,	a	sign
or	notice	will	also	be	placed	at	all	public	entrances	indicating
that	a	drill	is	in	progress	and	to	wait	for	service.	This	will
serve	to	notify	any	uninformed	parents	or	visitors	and	prevent
unwarranted	panic

Risk Reduction/Prevention and Intervention



4

• Non-student-occupied	buildings,	such	as	Communication	
and	Technology	Services,	the	Curriculum Materials Center,	
the	Educational	Services	Center	and	the	BOCES 4 Science.	
may	do	three	Evacuation	Drills	and	one	Lockdown Drill

C. Implementation of School Security

As	described	in	the	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	Code	of	
Conduct,	all	members	of	each	school/site	community	share	a	
responsibility	in	promoting	and	maintaining	a	safe	and	orderly	
school	environment.	Some	of	the	more	specific	measures	are	
expanded	upon	below.

Security Personnel – Hiring and Training
All	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	security	guards	are	hired	and	
trained	consistent	with	the	New	York	State	Security	Guard	Act	
of	1992	and	the	requirements	set	forth	in	the	New	York	State	
Division	of	Criminal	Justice	Services.	Continual	training	is	
provided	to	maintain	licensing	and	skills.

Security Personnel – Responsibilities and Authority
Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	employs	security	personnel	to	assist	
the	schools	in	dealing	with	all	manners	of	security	and	safety	
issues.	The	principal	role	of	our	security	personnel	is	to	safeguard	
students,	staff	and	visitors	from	harm;	to	deter,	detect,	respond	
to,	and	report	infractions	of	the	Code	of	Conduct	and	New	York	
State	Law;	and	to	protect	the	district’s	assets	from	theft	and	
damage.	Security	personnel	employed	by		
Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	are	authorized	to	carry	out	this	role	
consistent	with	the	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	Policies	and	
Regulations	applicable	New	York	State	Law,	Security	Standard	
Operating	Procedures	and	BOCES	training.

Security Guard Standard Operating Procedures
These	district-wide	security	guidelines,	procedures,	and	practices	
within	the	BOCES	will	be	periodically	updated.

Limited Access
All	exterior	doors	will	be	locked	with	the	exception	of	one	
controlled	point	of	access	during	the	school	day.

Visitor Access
Building/site	access	will	be	controlled	during	the	regular	school	
day	by	locking	down	the	building	and	utilizing	the	front	door	
buzzer/intercom/camera	to	screen	visitors	prior	to	entrance	into	
the	building.	Consistent	with	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	Board	
Policy	and	Code	of	Conduct,	an	approved	visitor	to	a	school/site	
will	present	valid	government	issued	photo	identification	and	be	
given	a	pass	prior	to	gaining	access	to	the	building.

Video Surveillance
Most	buildings	provide	video	surveillance	to	enhance	the	safety	of	
our	students	and	staff.	The	cameras	may	or	may	not	be	

actively	monitored,	but	the	recordings	are	available	for	BOCES	
officials	and	local	law	enforcement	use.

Intrusion Detection
Buildings	are	protected	by	an	intrusion	detection	alarm	system	
that	is	linked	to	a	central	monitoring	station.

Security Review

Through the coordination of the Monroe 2–Orleans BOCES 
Safety Committee, School/Site Safety Teams and the Safety and 
Security Coordinator there is an ongoing review of security 
issues.

D. Vital Educational Agency Information

Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	maintains	certain	information	about	
each	school/site	building	within	the	BOCES	including,	but	not	
limited	to:	school	populations,	transportation	needs	and	business	
and	home	telephone	numbers	of	key	personnel.	In	addition,	
similar	information	on	other	district	departments,	as	well	as	the	
assets	that	those	departments	could	provide	in	the	event	of	an	
emergency,	is	also	maintained	at	the	BOCES	level.

E. Early Detection of Potentially Violent Behaviors

The	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	acknowledges	the	importance	
of	early	recognition	and	intervention	into	conflicts	and	potentially	
violent	behaviors.

• Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	will	ensure	that	appropriate
school	violence	prevention	and	intervention	training	will	be
incorporated	into	teacher	conference	days	and	be	provided	to
all	staff	during	regularly	scheduled	staff	training	sessions.	All
threats	of	violence	are	taken	seriously	and	investigated

• We	recognize	that	despite	our	best	efforts,	students	and	parents
may	need	additional	assistance	to	respond	to	bullying.	To
ensure	a	quick	response	to	parent	and	student	concerns,	the
Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	has	developed	a	bullying	reporting
process.	Each	BOCES	program	has	identified	a	Dignity	for	All
Students	(DASA)	coordinator	responsible	for	this	function

• Students	and	staff	are	encouraged	to	share	information
regarding	any	conflicts	or	potentially	violent	behaviors	with	an
administrator	(and	law	enforcement	when	appropriate)	so	an
investigation	can	commence

• The	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	has	developed	policies	and
procedures	for	contacting	parents,	guardians	or	persons	in
a	parental	relation	to	a	student	in	the	event	of	an	implied
or	direct	threat	of	violence	by	a	student	against	themselves,	
including	threat	of	suicide

F. Hazard Identification

The	list	of	sites	of	potential	emergency	include	all	school/site	
buildings,	playground	areas,	properties	adjacent	to	schools,	and	
off-site	field	trip	locations.	These	hazards	and	how	to	handle	each	
issue	will	be	documented	in	each	Building-Level	Emergency	
Response	Plan.

Risk Reduction/Prevention and Intervention



5

Emergency Operations Group

During	an	emergency,	the	Emergency	Operations	Group	shall	
function	under	the	command	of	the	District	Superintendent	
and	the	district’s	Chief	Emergency	Officer.	The	Chief	
Emergency	Officer	will	be	designated	at	a	Board	meeting	
annually.	Under	normal	circumstances,	the	Chief	Emergency	
Officer	will	be	the Safety and Security Coordinator.

District Superintendent’s Cabinet

The	District	Superintendent’s	Cabinet	includes	all	assistant	
superintendents,	and	Exceptional	Children,	Center	for	
Workforce	Development,	Elementary	Science	Program	and	the	
executive	principal	of	Career	and	Technical	Education.	This	
group	may	be	activated	to	provide	assistance	to	any	building	in	
need.

Command Post

During	an	emergency,	the	District	Superintendent	or	their	
designee	may	activate	the	Emergency	Operations	Group	
when	necessary,	and	they	will	meet	at	a	designated	location.	
In	addition	to	the	Emergency	Operations	Group,	the	District	
Superintendent	may	summon	additional	cabinet	members	and	
resources	to	report	to	this	location.	This	designated	location	will	
be	referred	to	as	the	Command	Post	although	the	exact	location	
may	vary	depending	on	the	type	and	extent	of	the	event.

District Data and Contacts

An	updated	list	of	district	data	and	contacts	will	be	updated	
and	made	available	to	key	personnel,	including	all	building	
principals,	directors	and	site	supervisors	but	is	not	available	to	
the	general	public.

District-Wide School Safety Team

The Monroe 2–Orleans BOCES School Safety Team will meet at 
least two times per year to discuss school safety issues under the 
direction of the Chief Emergency Officer/ Safety  and Security 
Coordinator. The Team will consist of staff members from across the 
BOCES, community members and emergency responders. This 
team will make recommendations to the District Superintendent 
regarding school safety issues and develop the Monroe 2–Orleans 
BOCES District-Wide School Safety Plan.

Programs Housed in Host Sites

Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	programs	that	are	housed	in	host	
sites,	such	as	Gates	Chili	High	School,	Spencerport	Central	
Schools,	Roberts	Wesleyan	College,	or	others,	will	use	the	host	
sites’	emergency	plans	as	their	Emergency	Response	Plan.

District Resources & Contacts



6

General Response Actions For Emergencies
Subsequent	sections	of	this	Monroe	2-Orleans	BOCES	
District-Wide	School	Safety	Plan	outline	specific	response	
actions	for	individual	emergency	situations.	If	an	emergency	
situation	occurs	at	the	building-level,	it	is	the	responsibility	
of	each	and	every	BOCES	employee	to	take	those	actions	
which	are	geared	toward	preserving	the	health	and	safety	of	all	
students	and	staff.

A. Concept of Operations

The	overall	strategy	of	the	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	
District-Wide	School	Safety	Plan	and	Building-Level	
Emergency	Response	Plans	(ERP)	is	to	execute	effective	and	
timely	decisions	and	actions	that	prevent	harm,	protect	lives	
and	property,	mitigate	damages,	restore	order	and	aid	recovery.	
These	plans	are	based	upon	the	concept	that	the	incident	
management	functions	that	must	be	performed	by	the	school	
generally	parallel	some	of	their	daily	routine	functions.	To	the	
extent	possible,	the	same	personnel	and	material	resources	used	
for	daily	activities	will	be	employed	during	incidents.	Because	
personnel	and	equipment	resources	are	limited,	some	routine	
functions	that	do	not	contribute	directly	to	the	incident	may	
be	suspended.	The	personnel,	equipment,	and	supplies	that	
would	typically	be	required	from	those	routine	functions	will	be	
redirected	to	accomplish	assigned	incident	management	tasks.

Implementation of the Incident Command System (ICS)
The	Incident	Command	System	(ICS)	will	be	used	to	manage	
all	incidents	and	major	planned	events/drills.	In	general	the	
initial	Incident	Commander	at	the	building/site	will	be	the	
building	principal/director/site	supervisor	and	will	be	the	
delegated	authority	to	direct	all	incident	activities	within	the	
school’s	jurisdiction.	The	Incident	Commander	will	establish	
an	Incident	Command	Post	(ICP)	and	provide	an	assessment	
of	the	situation	to	the	emergency	responders,	identify	incident	
management	resources	required,	and	direct	the	on-scene	
incident	management	activities	from	the	ICP.	If	no	Incident	
Commander	is	present	at	the	onset	of	the	incident,	the	most	
qualified	individual	will	assume	command	until	relieved	by	
a	more	qualified	Incident	Commander.	8	NYCRR	Section	
155.17	(e)(2)(v)	requires	a	definition	of	a	chain	of	command	
consistent	with	the	Incident	Command	System.

Initial Response
School/site	personnel	are	likely	to	be	the	first	on	the	scene	of	
an	incident	in	a	school	setting.	Staff	and	faculty	are	expected	
to	respond	as	appropriate	and	notify	the	principal/director/
site	supervisor,	or	designee	until	command	is	transferred	to	
someone	more	qualified	and/or	to	an	emergency	response	
agency	with	legal	authority	to	assume	responsibility	(police,	fire	
or	EMS.	Staff	will	seek	guidance	and	direction	from	the	school	
district	and	emergency	responders.

Any	staff	person	or	faculty	in	a	building	that	sees	or	is	aware	of	
an	emergency	shall	activate	the	building	ERP.

B. Organization and Assignment of Responsibilities

This	section	establishes	the	operational	organization	that	will	be	
relied	on	to	manage	an	incident	and	includes	examples	of	the	
types	of	tasks	that	may	be	performed	by	different	positions.

The	Incident	Commander	is	not	able	to	manage	all	of	the	
aspects	associated	with	an	incident	without	assistance.	The	
school/site	relies	on	other	key	school/site	personnel	to	perform	
tasks	that	will	ensure	the	safety	of	students	and	staff	during	a	
crisis	or	incident.	The	Incident	Command	System	(ICS)	uses	
a	team	approach	to	manage	incidents.	It	is	difficult	to	form	a	
team	while	a	crisis	or	incident	is	unfolding.	Roles	should	be	
pre-assigned	based	on	training	and	qualifications.	Each	staff	
member	and	volunteer	must	be	familiar	with	his	or	her	role	and	
responsibilities	before	an	incident	occurs.	

Principal/Program Director /Site Supervisor
The	principal/director/site	supervisor,	or	their	designee,	will	
serve	as	the	Incident	Commander	and	designate	a	minimum	
of	two	qualified	individuals	to	serve	as	alternates	in	the	event	
that	the	principal/director/site	supervisor	is	unable	to	serve	
in	that	role.	At	all	times,	the	principal/director/site	supervisor	
still	retains	the	ultimate	responsibility	for	the	overall	safety	of	
students	and	staff.

Responsibilities	include:
• Provide	direction	over	all	incident	management	actions	based
on	procedures	outlined	in	the	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES
District-Wide	School	Safety	Plan	and	building	Emergency
Response	Plan	or	ERP

• Take	steps	necessary	to	ensure	the	safety	of	students,	staff	and
others

• Determine	which	emergency	protocols	to	implement
as	described	in	the	functional	annexes	of	the
Monroe	2-Orleans	BOCES	District-Wide	School	Safety
Plan	and	the	building	ERP

• Coordinate/cooperate	with	emergency	responders
• Keep	the	District	Superintendent	and	Chief	Emergency
Officer	informed	of	the	situation

Teachers/Substitute Teacher/Student Teachers
Teachers	shall	be	responsible	for	the	supervision	of	students	and	
shall	remain	with	students	unless	directed	to	do	otherwise.

Responsibilities	include:
• Supervise	students	under	their	charge
• Take	steps	to	ensure	the	safety	of	students,	staff,	and	other
individuals

• Take	attendance	when	class	relocates	to	a	designated	area	or
to	an	evacuation	site

• Report	missing	students	to	the	appropriate	Emergency
Response	Team	member

General Procedures



7

• Execute	assignments	as	directed	by	the	Incident	Commander
• Obtain	first	aid	services	for	injured	students	from	the	school
nurse	or	person	trained	in	first	aid.	Arrange	for	first	aid	for
those	who	are	unable	to	be	moved

• Render	first	aid	or	CPR	if	certified	and	deemed	necessary

Teacher Aides and Student Behavioral Specialists
 Responsibilities	include:
• Assisting	teachers	as	directed	and	actions	to	ensure	the	safety
of	students

Counselors, Social Workers and  School Psychologists
Responsibilities	include:
• Take	steps	to	ensure	the	safety	of	students,	staff	and	other
individuals	during	the	implementation	of	the	ERP

• Provide	appropriate	direction	to	students	as	described	in	the
Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	District-Wide	School	Safety
Plan	and	the	building	ERP	for	the	incident	type

• Render	first	aid	or	CPR	and/or	psychological	aid	if	trained	to
do	so

• Assist	in	the	transfer	of	students,	staff	and	others	when	their
safety	is	threatened	by	an	emergency

• Administer	counseling	services	as	deemed	necessary	during
or	after	an	incident

• Execute	assignments	as	directed	by	the	Incident	Commander

School Nurse/Health Assistant
Responsibilities	include:
• Administer	first	aid	or	emergency	treatment	as	needed
• Supervise	administration	of	first	aid	by	those	trained	to
provide	it

• Organize	first	aid	and	medical	supplies
• Execute	assignments	as	directed	by	the	Incident	Commander

Cleaners/Maintenance Staff 

Responsibilities	include:
• Survey	and	report	building	damage	to	the	Incident
Commander

• Control	main	shutoff	valves	for	gas,	water	and	electricity	and
ensure	that	no	hazard	results	from	broken	or	downed	lines

• Provide	damage	control	as	needed
• Assist	in	the	conservation,	use	and	disbursement	of	supplies
and	equipment

• Control	locks	and	physical	security	as	directed	by	the
Incident	Commander

• Keep	Incident	Commander	informed	of	the	condition	of	the
school

• Execute	assignments	as	directed	by	the	Incident	Commander

Principals/Directors/Site Supervisors, Secretaries/ 
Office Secretaries 
Responsibilities	include:
• Answer	phones	and	assist	in	receiving	and	providing
consistent	information	to	callers

• Provide	for	the	safety	of	essential	school	records	and
documents

• Provide	assistance	to	the	Incident	Commander/principal/
director/site	supervisor

• Monitor	radio	emergency	broadcasts
• Execute	assignments	as	directed	by	the	Incident	Commander

Bus/Van Drivers
Responsibilities	include:
• Supervise	the	care	of	students	if	disaster	occurs	while
students	are	on	the	bus

• Transfer	students	to	new	location	when	directed
• Execute	assignments	as	directed	by	the	Incident	Commander

Other Staff/Security
Responsibilities	include:
• Execute	assignments	as	directed	by	the	Incident	Commander

Students
Responsibilities	include:
• Cooperate	during	emergency	drills,	exercises	and	during	an
incident

• Follow	directions	given	by	facility	and	staff.
• Know	student	emergency	actions	and	assist	fellow	students	in
an	incident

• Report	situations	of	concern
• Develop	an	awareness	of	the	high	priority	threats/hazards
and	how	to	take	measures	to	protect	against	and	mitigate
those	threats/hazards

Parents/Guardians
Responsibilities	include:
• Encourage	and	support	school	safety,	violence	prevention	and
incident	preparedness	programs	within	the	school

• Participate	in	volunteer	service	projects	for		promoting	school
incident	preparedness

• Provide	the	school	with	requested	information	concerning
the	incident,	early/late	dismissals	and	other	related	release
information

• Listen	to	and	follow	directions	as	provided	by	the	school
district

C. Direction, Control, and Coordination

School Incident Command System
To	provide	for	effective	direction,	control	and	coordination	
of	an	incident,	the	School	ERP	will	be	activated	through	the	
implementation	of	the	Incident	Command	System	(ICS).

Staff	are	assigned	to	serve	within	the	ICS	structure	based	on	
their	expertise,	training	and	the	needs	of	the	incident.	Roles	
should	be	pre-assigned	based	on	training	and	qualifications.	The	
school	ICS	is	organized	as	follows:

General Procedures

dcomanzo
Highlight



8

School Incident Command System (ICS) Roles Defined
The	Incident	Command	System	is	organized	into	the	following	
functional	areas:

Incident Command
Direct	the	incident	management	activities	using	strategic	
guidance	provided	by	the	District	Superintendent	or	their	
designee.	

Responsibilities	and	duties	include:
• Establish	and	manage	the	command	post,	establish	the
incident	organization	and	determine	strategies	to	implement
protocols	(adapt	as	needed)

• Monitor	incident	safety	conditions	and	develop	measures	for
ensuring	the	safety	of	building	occupants

• Coordinate	media	relations	and	information	dissemination
with	the	District	Superintendent/Incident	Commander

• Develop	working	knowledge	of	local/regional	agencies,	serve
as	the	primary	on-scene	contact	for	outside	agencies	assigned
to	an	incident	and	assist	in	accessing	services	when	the	need
arises

• Document	all	significant	activities

Planning Section
Collect,	evaluate	and	disseminate	information	needed	to	
measure	the	size,	scope	and	seriousness	of	an	incident	and	to	
plan	appropriate	incident	management	activities.

Responsibilities	and	duties	include:
• Assist	Incident	Commander	in	the	collection	and	evaluation
of	information	about	an	incident	as	it	develops	(including	site
map	and	area	map),	assist	with	ongoing	planning	efforts	and
maintain	incident	log

• Document	all	activities

Operations Section
Direct	all	tactical	operations	of	an	incident	including	the	
implementation	of	response/recovery	activities	according	to	
ICS,	care	of	students,	first	aid,	psychological	first	aid,	search	and	
rescue,	site	security,	damage	assessment,	evacuations	and	the	
release	of	students	to	parents.

Responsibilities	and	duties	include:
• Monitor	site	utilities	(i.e.	electric,	gas,	water,	heat/ventilation/
air	conditioning)	and	shut	off	only	if	danger	exists	or	directed
by	the	Incident	Commander	and	assist	in	securing	the	facility

• Establish	medical	triage	with	staff	trained	in	first	aid	and
CPR,	provide	and	oversee	care	given	to	injured	persons,	
distribute	supplies,	and	request	additional	supplies	from	the
Logistics	Section

Incident Commander 
Directs incident management activities

Alternate IC

Public Information Officer (PIO)
Acts as a liaison between school and 

public (including media)

Liaison Officer
Responsible for coordinating with 

outside/emergency agencies

Planning
Responsible 

for collection, 
evaluation, 

dissemination, and 
use of information

Operations
Carries out response 
activities, universal 
procedures, etc.

Logistics
Responsible for 

organizing resources 
and personnel

Finance & 
Administration

Responsible 
for incident 

accounting, costs 
and reimbursement

Safety Officer
Responsible for overall safety of all 

persons involved

General Procedures



9

• Provide	and	access	psychological	first	aid	services	for	those
in	need	and	access	local/regional	providers	for	ongoing	crisis
counseling	for	students,	staff	and	parents/guardians

• Coordinate	the	rationed	distribution	of	food	and	water,	
establish	secondary	toilet	facilities	in	the	event	of	water
or	plumbing	failure,	and	request	needed	supplies	from	the
Logistics	Section

• Document	all	activities

As	needed,	Emergency	Response	Teams	may	be	activated	
within	the	Operations	Section.	8	NYCRR	Section	155.17	
(e)(2)(ii)	requires	the	designation	of	individuals	assigned	to	
emergency	response	teams.

Logistics Section
Support	ICS	by	securing	and	providing	needed	personnel,	
equipment,	facilities,	resources	and	services	required	for	incident	
resolution.	Coordinate	personnel,	assembling	and	developing	
volunteer	teams	and	facilitates	communication	among	incident	
responders.	This	function	may	involve	a	major	role	in	an	
extended	incident.

Responsibilities	and	duties	include:
• Establish	and	oversee	communications	and	activities	during
an	incident	(two-way	radio,	written	updates,	etc.)	and	develop
telephone	tree	for	after-hours	communication

• Establish	and	maintain	school	and	classroom	preparedness
kits,	coordinate	access	to	and	distribution	of	supplies	during
an	incident	and	monitor	inventory	of	supplies	and	equipment

• Document	all	activities

Finance/Administration Section
Oversee	all	financial	activities	including	purchasing	necessary	
materials,	tracking	incident	costs,	arranging	contracts	for	
services,	timekeeping	for	emergency	responders,	submitting	
documentation	for	reimbursement	and	recovering	school	
records	following	an	incident.

Responsibilities	and	duties	include:
• Overall	documentation	and	recordkeeping	activities;	when
possible,	photograph	and	videotape	damage	to	property

• Develop	a	system	to	monitor	and	track	expenses.
• Account	for	financial	losses	in	accordance	with	district	policy
and	secure	all	records

Coordination with Responders
The	building	Emergency	Response	Plan	(ERP)	may	have	a	set	
of	interagency	agreements	with	various	agencies	to	aid	in	timely	
communication.	Agreements	with	these	agencies	and	services	
(including,	but	not	limited	to,	mental	health,	law	enforcement	
and	fire	departments)	could	help	coordinate	services	between	
the	agencies	and	the	school.	The	agreements	could	specify	the	
type	of	communication	and	services	provided	by	one	agency	to	
another

In	the	event	of	an	incident	involving	outside	agencies,	a	transfer	
of	command	from	the	school	Incident	Commander	to	a	
responding	agency	will	occur.

Source and Use of Resources
The	school/site	will	use	its	own	resources	and	equipment	to	
respond	to	incidents	until	emergency	responders	arrive.	It	will	
be	the	responsibility	of	the	Emergency	Operations	Group	and	
the	Superintendent’s	Cabinet	to	help	secure	these	resources.

D. Information Collection, Analysis and
Dissemination

The	school/site	will	collect,	analyze,	and	disseminate	
information	during	and	after	an	incident.

Types of Information
During	an	incident,	the	school/site	will	assign	administrative	
staff	to	monitor	weather	and	local	law	enforcement	alerts.	This	
information	will	be	analyzed	and	shared	with	the	Incident	
Commander.

After	an	incident,	the	school/site	will	assign	staff	to	monitor	
websites	and	hotlines	of	mental	health,	emergency	management	
and	relief	agencies.	The	school/site	will	also	monitor	the	
Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	information	portal	to	determine	
any	information	pertinent	or	critical	to	the	schools/site	recovery	
effort.

Information Documentation
The	assigned	staff	member	will	document	the	information	
gathered	including:
• Source	of	information
• Staff	member	who	collected	and	analyzed	the	information
• Staff	member	to	receive	and	use	the	information
• Format	for	providing	the	information
• Date	and	time	the	information	was	collected	and	shared

E. Administration, Finance and Logistics

Agreements and Contracts
If	school	resources	prove	to	be	inadequate	during	an	incident,	
the	school	will	request	assistance	from	local	emergency	
agencies,	other	agencies	and	industry	in	accordance	with	
existing	Memoranda	of	Understanding.	Such	assistance	
includes	equipment,	supplies	and/or	personnel.	All	agreements	
are	entered	into	by	authorized	Monroe	2-Orleans	BOCES	and	
building/site	officials.

General Procedures



10

Documentation
The	Incident	Command	System	(ICS)	section	chiefs	will	
maintain	accurate	logs	recording	key	incident	management	
activities	including:
• Activation	or	deactivation	of	incident	facilities
• Significant	changes	in	the	incident	situation
• Major	commitments	of	resources	or	requests	for	additional
resources	from	external	sources

• Issuance	of	protective	action	recommendations	to	staff	and
students

• Evacuations
• Casualties
• Containment	or	termination	of	the	incident

Incident Costs
The	ICS	Finance/Administration	section	is	responsible	
for	maintaining	records	summarizing	the	use	of	personnel,	
equipment	and	supplies	to	obtain	an	estimate	of	incident	
response	costs	that	can	be	used	in	preparing	future	
school	budgets	and	to	share	these	costs	with	the	District	
Superintendent	and	District	Business	Office.	These	records	may	
be	used	to	recover	costs	from	the	responsible	party	or	insurers	
or	as	a	basis	for	requesting	financial	assistance	for	certain	
allowable	response	and	recovery	costs	from	the	State	and/or	
Federal	government.	In	General,	under	normal	circumstances,	
the	Finance	Director	will	fill	this	role.

Preservation of Records
In	order	to	continue	normal	school	operations	following	an	
incident,	records	such	as	legal	documents	and	student	files	must	
be	protected	(i.e.	in	the	event	of	a	fire	and	flood).

F. Authorities and References

The	following	are	state	and	federal	authorizations	upon	which	
Building	Emergency	Response	Plans	is	based.	These	authorities	
and	references	provide	a	legal	basis	for	emergency	management	
operations	and	activities.
• The	New	York	State	Safe	Schools	Against	Violence	in
Education	(Project	SAVE)	and	8	NYCRR	Section	155.17	
require	that	school	emergency	plans	define	the	chain	
of	command	in	a	manner	consistent	with	the	Incident	
Command	System	(ICS).	Refer	to	Appendix	B	for	the	
defined	chain	of	command.

• New	York	State	Executive	Order	26.1	(2006),	established
ICS	as	the	state’s	standard	command	and	control	system	that
will	be	utilized	during	emergency	operations.

• Homeland	Security	Presidential	Directive	(HSPD)	–	5
required	the	development	of	National	Incident	Management
System	(NIMS),	of	which	ICS	is	a	critical	component.

G. Communications

Communication Between School and Emergency Responders
The	school/site	will	contact	and	maintain	communications	
with	emergency	responders	during	an	incident.	The	School	
Incident	Commander	or	Chief	Emergency	Officer	will	transfer	
command	to	the	appropriate	emergency	responder	who	arrives	
on	the	scene	to	assume	management	of	the	incident,	including	
coordination	of	internal	and	external	communications.	The	
Incident	Commander	will	use	the	communication	platform	
described	in	the	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	District-Wide	
School	Safety	Plan	to	notify	the	principal/director/site	
supervisor	of	the	schools/sites	status	and	needs.	The	
Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	Communication	Manager	and	
emergency	responders	will	coordinate	the	release	of	information	
to	ensure	that	information	is	consistent,	accurate	and	timely.

Internal Communications
Monroe	2-Orleans	BOCES	has	a	Communications	Manager	
or	public	information	officer	(PIO)	who	will	be	responsible	to:
• Help	create	the	policies	and	plans	for	communicating
emergency	information	internally	and	to	the	public

• Follow	the	communications	policies	and	procedures
established	by	the	school

• Help	establish	alternative	means	to	provide	information
in	the	event	of	a	failure	of	power,	phone	or	other	lines	of
communication

• Develop	materials	for	use	in	media	briefings
• Act	as	the	contact	for	emergency	responders	and	assist	in
coordination	of	media	communications

Communication Between School Officials and Staff Members 
School/site	personnel	will	be	notified	when	an	incident	occurs	
and	kept	informed	as	additional	information	becomes	available.	
They	will	also	be	informed	as	plans	for	management	of	the	
incident	evolve.	Keep	staff	informed	to	the	greatest	degree	
possible.

Communication Between Building Officials and Students 
Communication	of	emergency	information	between	school/site	
officials	will	primarily	take	place	through	the	building’s	public	
address	system	or	face-to-face	between	faculty	and	students.	
Other	methods	of	communication	with	students/staff	may	also	
be	used.

External Communications
Building	site	officials	must	communicate	with	the	larger	school	
community	on	how	incidents	will	be	addressed	on	a	regular	
basis.	However,	once	an	incident	does	occur,	parents,	media	and	
the	community	at	large	will	require	clear	and	concise	messages	
from	the	school	about	the	incident.	This	will	include	what	is	
being	done	and	the	safety	of	the	children	and	staff.

General Procedures



11

Communication with Parents
• Before	an	incident	occurs,	the	school/site	will:
o Inform	parents	on	how	to	access	alerts	and	incident
information

o Inform	parents	that	the	school/site	has	developed	the
Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	District-Wide	School	Safety
Plan	and	a	Building	Emergency	Response	Plan,	along	with
their	purpose	and	objectives.	Information	will	be	included
in	the	yearly	school	calendar	and	is	also	available	on	the
district	website

o Be	prepared	with	translation	services	for	non-English-
speaking	families	and	students	with	limited	English
proficiency

• In	the	event	of	an	incident,	the	school	will:
o Disseminate	information	through	the	Blackboard	Connect
system	to	inform	parents	about	what	is	known	to	have
happened

o Implement	a	plan	to	manage	phone	calls	and	parents	who
arrive	at	the	school

o Describe	how	the	school/site	and
Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	are	handling	the	situation

o Provide	a	phone	number,	web	site	address	or	recorded
hotline	where	parents	can	receive	updated	incident
information	if	deemed	necessary

o Inform	parents	and	students	when	and	where	school	will
resume

o After	an	incident,	school	administrators	will	schedule	and
attend	an	open	question-and-answer	meeting	for	parents/
guardians	as	soon	as	possible	if	deemed	necessary

Communication with the Media
In	the	event	of	an	incident,	the	School	Incident	Commander,	
Communications	Director,	Chief	Emergency	Officer	or	the	
Emergency	Responder	Incident	Commander	(in	the	event	
command	has	been	transferred),	will	coordinate	with	the	public	
information	officer	and/or	participate	in	a	joint	information	
effort	to:
• Provide	regular	updates	to	the	media	and	school	community.
• Once	Incident	Command	is	transferred	to	emergency	response
authorities,	so	too	will	PIO	functions	be	transferred	to	the
ICS	PIO

• Monitor	the	release	of	information	and	correct	misinformation

H. Multi-Hazard Response

There	are	many	variables	that	could	impact	the	manner	in	which	
the	School	Emergency	Response	Team	responds	to	a	particular	
occurrence.	These	variables	could	include	(but	are	not	limited	
to):	time	of	year,	time	of	day,	weather,	age	of	student(s)	involved,	
location	of	student(s),	anticipated	delay	from	emergency	
responders,	availability	of	support	personnel	and	availability	of	
transportation.	Therefore,	it	would	be	not	be	practical	to	try	and	
map	out	the	steps	to	take	for	every	conceivable	scenario.	It	is	
more	practical	to	focus	on	just	a	few	critical	decisions	that	need	
to	be	made	in	every	emergency	pursuant	to	our	primary	goal	of	
preventing	the	loss	of	life	and	injury	of	students	and	school	staff.

The	building	principal/director/site	supervisor	or	their	designee	
is	designated	as	the	Incident	Commander	of	their	school	
during	a	crisis	situation	until	relieved	by	a	higher	authority.	
The	principal/director/site	supervisor	will	provide	leadership,	
organize	activities	and	disseminate	information	with	the	
assistance	of	the	school’s	Emergency	Operations	Group	or	
Chief	Emergency	Officer.

In	most	instances	where	this	level	of	school	response	is	
warranted,	the	school	will	be	seeking	assistance	from	other	
emergency	responders	in	resolving	the	situation.	As	such,	the	
immediate	objective	is	generally	to	contain	the	incident	and	
successfully	manage	it	until	the	emergency	personnel	arrive.

I. Emergency Notifications

Notification of significant events or events that required a call to 911 
shall be made to the Safety and Security Coordinator. The Safety and 
Security Coordinator is the Chief Emergency Officer for the District. 
In their absence, notifications may be made to the Assistant 
Superintendent for Instructional Programs during normal business 
hours. The Safety and Security Coordinator or the Assistant 
Superintendent will notify the District Superintendent immediately. 
These notifications shall occur at the earliest and safest possible time 
during the response phase. The District Superintendent, Assistant 
Superintendent or Chief Emergency Officer will request the 
additional resources necessary to assist in the buildings issue. 

J. Responses to Acts of Violence: Implied or 
Direct Threats

Having	acknowledged	that	the	recognition	and	early	
intervention	into	potentially	violent	situations	is	critical,	it	shall	
be	the	policy	of	the	district	to	deal	with	all	threats	and	
potentially	threatening	situations	and	circumstances	in	a	serious	
and	deliberate	manner.	In	addition	to	reporting	and	
investigating	direct	threats,	all	staff	are	responsible	for	relaying	
to	their	respective	school	administration	information	about	any	
student	behaviors	or	communications	that	suggest	a	threatening	
situation	is	possible.

Depending	on	the	imminent	nature	of	the	threat,	the	following	
procedures	may	be	used	by	the	district:

• Use	of	staff	trained	in	de-escalation	or	other	strategies	to
diffuse	the	situation

• Inform	building	principal/directors/site	supervisor	of	implied
or	direct	threat	or	troubling	behaviors	or	communications.

• Contact	911	if	the	threat	may	be	imminent	or	for	their
advice	and	assistance.	Direct	threats	to	personal	safety	may
well	constitute	a	violation	of	law	and	the	student	making	the
threat	can	be	prosecuted.	Prosecution	in	criminal	or	family
court	provides	another	opportunity	for	intervention

• The	building	principal/director/site	supervisor	may	initiate	a
threat	assessment	inquiry	to	attempt	to	determine	the	level	of
threat

General Procedures



12

• If	time	permits,	this	inquiry	would	also	involve	interviewing
potential	witnesses	as	well	as	the	parties	involved.	Some
factors	to	consider	when	evaluating	the	level	of	threat	include,	
but	are	not	limited	to,	specificity	of	threat	to	a	person	or
persons,	mention	of	specific	means	or	weapons,	specific
reason	or	justification,	history	of	student,	known	access	to
weapons	and	propensity	for	violence

• Monitor	situation,	adjust	response	as	appropriate,	and	include
the	possible	use	of	the	counseling	staff

• Follow	up	with	the	appropriate	procedures	as	outlined	in	the
Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	Code	of	Conduct

K. Acts of Violence

When	an	act	of	violence	has	occurred,	regardless	of	whom	it	
involves,	the	principal/director/site	supervisor	or	designee	must	
quickly	obtain	all	essential	information	to	try	to	determine	the	
degree	of	threat	or	danger	and	decide	on	what	actions	might	
mitigate	further	risk.	General	non-specific	actions	may	include:
• Call	911	and	notify	security
• Isolate	the	immediate	area	and	initiate	appropriate	Functional
Annex	if	necessary

• Identify	and	separate	the	involved	persons	if	possible
• Monitor	situation;	adjust	response	as	appropriate;	if	necessary,	
initiate	early	dismissal,	sheltering	or	evacuation	procedures

• Follow	the	district’s	designated	notification	process

L. Specific Response Protocols

Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	has	established	appropriate	
response	actions	to	a	variety	of	emergency	situations.	They	are	
detailed	in	each	Building-Level	Emergency	Response	Plan	
(ERP)	as	recommended	by	the	NYSED	Safe	Schools	Template.	
Transportation	safety	procedures	are	also	in	place.

M. Obtaining Advice and Assistance from the
Local Government

In	the	event	of	an	emergency	where	additional	advice,	
assistance,	or	assets	not	readily	available	to	the	district	
are	needed,	the	District	Superintendent	of	Schools	will	
activate	the	Emergency	Operations	Group	and	the	District	
Superintendent’s	Cabinet	to	help	provide	needed	assistance.

N. District Resources Available for Use in an
Emergency

The	district	has	identified	district-based	resources,	which	may	
be	available	during	an	emergency.	These	resources	are	available	
through	the	Emergency	Operations	Group	Each	resource	is	
described	in	the	District	Resource	Section	of	the	Building-
Level	ERP.

O. Functional Annexes

Functional	Annexes	focus	on	the	critical	operational	functions	
and	the	courses	of	action	developed	to	carry	them	out.	To	
ensure	consistency	in	New	York	State,	schools	are	provided	
with	standardized	definitions	and	suggested	best	practice	of	the	
following	functional	annexes:
• Evacuation
• Lockout
• Lockdown
• Shelter	in	Place
• Hold	in	Place

These	five	functional	annexes	provide	a	common	foundation	
for	response	to	all	emergencies.	These	annexes	are	defined	in	
detail	in	the	Building-Level	ERPs	and	quick	reference	guides.	
Other	annexes	available	and	listed	in	this	section	are	crime	
scene	management,	communications,	accounting	for	all	persons,	
continuity	of	operations	and	recovery.

P. Crime Scene Management

Evidence	is	critical	to	the	investigation	and	prosecution	of	
criminal	cases.	Therefore,	only	trained	professionals	should	
do	the	collection	and	preservation	of	evidence.	Before	those	
professionals	arrive,	it	is	important	that	the	crime	scene	
remain	as	uncontaminated	as	possible.	There	are	things	that	
can	be	done	by	people	who	arrive	at	the	scene	first	to	help	
protect	the	evidence.	These	procedures	were	developed	around	
the	RESPOND	acronym,	which	was	designed	to	aid	in	
remembering	the	steps	to	securing	crime	scenes	and	evidence.

Actions
Respond
• Ensure	your	personal	safety	first,	then	if	possible,	formulate	a
plan	and	make	mental	notes

Evaluate
Evaluate	the	severity	of	the	situation,	call	911	if	appropriate.
• Identify	involved	parties
• Be	aware	of	weapons,	hazards,	and	potential	evidence
• Don’t	touch	anything	unless	absolutely	necessary	to	preserve
safety

Secure
• Clear	away	uninvolved	people
• Establish	a	perimeter	that	prevents	people	from	entering	the
potential	crime	scene

Protect
• Safeguard	the	scene	–	limit	and	document	any	people
entering	the	area

• Don’t	use	phones	or	bathrooms	within	the	crime	scene	area
• Don’t	eat,	drink	or	smoke	in	the	crime	scene	area

General Procedures



13

Observe
• Write	down	your	observations	as	soon	as	is	safe	to	do	so
• Record	detailed	information	ans	don’t	rely	on	your	memory
• Notes	will	aid	first	responders	upon	arrival	and	could	be
utilized	in	court

Notify
• Call	911	if	not	already	called	or	police	are	not	on	scene

Document
• Take	note	of	specific	things	such	as	time,	date,	people	at
scene,	weather,	doors	open	or	closed,	lights	on	or	off	and	the
position	of	furniture

• Be	prepared	to	provide	your	notes	and	information	to	police

Q. Emergency Evacuation of Non-Ambulatory
Disabled Individuals with Disabilities

Each	building	principal/director/site	supervisor	is	responsible	
for	identifying	non-ambulatory	disabled	staff	or	students	and	
listing	that	information	in	their	building	level	emergency	plan.	
This	includes	assigning	an	area	of	rescue	assistance	for	such	
person	on	floors	above	or	below	the	level	of	discharge.	Since	
building	level	ERPs	are	provided	to	local	emergency	responders,	
this	information	will	be	readily	available	during	an	emergency.

R. Accounting for All Persons

The	Building-Level	ERP	has	procedures	in	place	to:
• Take	attendance	and	report	to	the	Incident	Commander
when	class	relocates	inside	the	building	or	an	evacuation
takes	place

• Report	to	the	Incident	Commander	when	a	student,	staff
member,	or	guest	cannot	be	located

• Dismiss	students	if	they	have	been	relocated	in	the	building

S. Family Reunification Plans

During	any	building	evacuation	it	is	important	to	have	a	family	
reunification	plan.	In	general,	families	should	be	reunified	at	
the	each	buildings	evacuation	site	and	will	require	assigned	
personnel	and	plans	that	should	be	detailed	in	each	building	
level	emergency	response	plan.

T. Crises Occurring Outside of Normal School
Hours

Due	to	the	many	uncertainties	about	building	occupancy	
during	times	when	school	is	not	in	session,	it	is	difficult	to	
prescribe	a	specific	course	of	action	that	will	remedy	any	and	all	
crises	occurring	within	that	time	frame.	The	building	principal/
director/site	supervisor	will	notify	their	immediate	supervisor	or	
the	Chief	Emergency	Officer	of	the	crisis	and	the	appropriate	
actions	will	be	taken.

U. Procedures for Informing Other Educational
Agencies of an Emergency

1. The Chief Emergency Officer/Safety and Security Coordinator will 
evaluate the impact of an emergency on other educational 
agencies within the school district.

2. If the impact is evident, the Chief Emergency Officer will inform 
the contact person at each affected educational agency of the 
status of the emergency.

3. If contact with other educational agencies cannot be made, the 
Chief Emergency Officer/Safety and Security Coordinator will 
contact the appropriate police agency for assistance in 
communicating information to these educational facilities.

4.  If transportation, sheltering and other types of assistance are to 
be provided to other educational agencies, the Chief Emergency 
Officer/Safety and Security Coordinator will make arrangements 
to implement this assistance.

V. Procedures for School Cancellation

When	it	becomes	necessary	to	close	schools	and	cancel	classes,	
the	decision	to	close	will	be	made	at	the	earliest	possible	time.	
As	indicated	in	the	emergency	closing	section	of	this	manual,	
decisions	to	close	are	made	after	extensive	review	of	conditions	
and	consultation	with	other	agencies,	but	always	with	the	best	
interest	of	our	students	and	staff	in	mind.

When	a	decision	to	close	one	or	more	of	the	district	school/
site(s)	is	made,	this	information	is	immediately	transmitted	
to	all	local	radio	and	TV	stations	for	broadcast	to	the	general	
public.	The	specific	procedure	is	outlined	in	the	emergency	
closing	section	of	this	manual.

W. Procedures for Sheltering Students, Staff, 
and Visitors

In	the	event	that	it	becomes	necessary	to	shelter	students,	staff,	
visitors,	or	other	individuals,	the	building	principal/director/
site	supervisor	or	their	designee	will	contact	the	Assistant	
Superintendent	for	Instructional	Programs	or	the	Chief	
Emergency	Officer/	Safety and Security Coordinator, The	
Assistant	Superintendent	for	Instructional	Programs	or	the	
Chief	Emergency	Officer/Safety and Security Coordinator will	
notify	the	District	Superintendent.	If	it	becomes	apparent	that	
district	students	will	not	be	able	to	leave	the	facility,	the	school	
principal/director/site	supervisor	will	make	arrangements	for	
adequate	supervision	of	the	students	under	their	direction	and	
to	make	provisions	for	building	maintenance	(custodial)	and	
food	services.	It	shall	be	the	responsibility	of	the	Chief	
Emergency	Officer/Safety and Security Coordinator	to	inform	
appropriate	police,	Red	Cross	and	emergency	preparedness	
officials.

General Procedures



14

The	district	has	also	partnered	with	different	local	and	state	
agencies	to	provide	shelter	to	the	community	during	certain	
disasters	or	emergencies.	The	Chief	Emergency	Officer	is	
the	contact	for	those	agencies	during	the	crisis.	The	Chief	
Emergency	Officer	will	take	appropriate	actions	during	such	
incidents.

X. Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP)

As	part	of	the	Continuity	of	Operations	Plan	(COOP),		
Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	will	use	resources	to:
• Identify	primary	and	secondary	relocation	sites	for	each
building	that	meet	the	needs	of	school

• Allow	the	COOP	to	be	activated	at	any	time	and	sustaining
it	for	up	to	30	days

• Re-establish	essential	functions,	such	as	restoration	of	school
operations,	and	maintaining	the	safety	and	well-being	of
students	and	the	learning	environment

• Ensuring	students	receive	applicable	related	services	in	the
event	of	a	prolonged	closure

• Protect	vital	documents	and	make	them	available	at	alternate
sites

• Identify	personnel	to	assist	in	developing	COOP	and
training	them	in	activating	COOP	procedures

Y. Recovery

District Support for Buildings
In	addition	to	support	during	an	emergency,	Monroe	2–Orleans	
BOCES	will	use	all	resources	at	its	disposal	to	support	the	
Emergency	Response	Teams	and	the	Post-Incident	Response	
Teams	in	the	affected	school/sites(s)	after	the	incident	has	been	
resolved	to	the	point	where	recovery	of	normal	operations	can	
commence.	Additional	support	includes	but	is	not	limited	to	
mental	health	services,	building	security	and	facility	restoration.

Disaster Mental Health Services
Monroe	2-Orleans	BOCES	staff	will	assist	in	the	coordination	
of	Disaster	Mental	Health	Resources,	in	support	of	the	Post-
Incident	Response	Teams,	in	the	affected	school/site(s).	This	
may	take	the	form	of	seeking	out	additional	local	support	or	
could,	if	warranted,	involve	accessing	federal	and	state	mental	
health	resources	as	well.

Review and Debriefing
The	involved	school/site’s	Building-Level	Emergency	Response	
Team	will	meet	to	review	the	specific	incident	to	determine	if	
the	response	plan	was	adhered	to	and	if	any	improvements	are	
needed	to	enhance	the	plan.	This	review	may,	depending	on	
the	nature	and	degree	of	the	incident,	include	input	from	the	
Emergency	Operations	Group	and/or	representatives	of	local	
emergency	response	agencies.	The	review	and	debriefing	may	
include	the	items	summarized	in	the	next	section	describing	the	
Post-Incident	Response	Guide.

Post-Incident Response
Building-Level	Post-Incident	Response	Team	will	have	the	
responsibility	of	assisting	the	school/site	community	and	
guiding	staff	and	administration	in	coping	with	the	aftermath	
of	a	serious	violent	incident	or	emergency.	It	is	likely,	however,	
that	these	duties	and	responsibilities	will	be	shared	by	members	
of	the	Trauma,	Illness,	Grief	(TIG)	Team,	Building-Level	
Safety	Team,	Building-Level	Emergency	Response	Teams	and	
the	remainder	of	the	school/site	community.
• Convene	at	the	earliest	possible	time	following	the	crisis
for	a	meeting	to	help	the	principal/director/site	supervisor
prepare	a	written	statement	for	the	staff	to	be	presented
at	the	Emergency	Staff	Meeting.	It	may	be	most	prudent
to	convene	on	the	weekend	in	some	crisis	situations	to
effectively	manage	communications	to	staff	and	parents	and
to	initiate	the	proper	support	services	as	needed

• Review	roles	in	providing	support	during	the	day	of	the
critical	incident

• Attend	end-of-school	debriefing	meeting	for	staff.	Prepare	to
offer	any	support	in	ways	needed

• Meet	with	principal/director/site	supervisor,	following	staff
debriefing,	if	possible,	to	process	the	day’s	events	and	prepare
for	the	next	school	day

• Meet	daily,	for	as	many	days	as	necessary,	to	process	events
and	decide	measures	needed	to	meet	the	needs	of	students,	
staff,	family,	and	community

• Solicit	and	encourage	feedback	from	students,	staff,	family
and	community.	Feedback	will	be	recorded	on	the
Building-Level	ERP	feedback	form	for	evaluation	purposes

• Meet	after	the	passage	of	two	to	three	weeks	to	evaluate
and	possibly	revise	plan	based	on	students,	staff,	family,	and
community	feedback

Trauma, Illness, and Grief (TIG) Team
The	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	Trauma,	Illness,	and	Grief	
(TIG)	Team	is	a	group	of	counselors,	psychologists,	social	
workers,	nurses	and	other	staff	members	who	have	received	
specialized	training	in	responding	to	the	emotional	needs	of	
children,	teachers,	and	other	school	personnel,	which	arise	
from	trauma,	violence,	illness,	grief	and	loss.	The	TIG	team	
will	oversee	the	initial	and	on-going	training	program	for	all	
building	crisis	teams	and	maintain	records.	The	TIG	team	is	
also	responsible	for	coordinating	crisis	team	activities.

General Procedures



15

Threat And Hazard Planning Guidelines

A. Introduction of Potential Hazards

Schools	are	exposed	to	many	threats,	hazards,	and	
vulnerabilities.	All	of	these	have	the	potential	for	disrupting	
the	school	community,	exposing	students	and	staff	to	injury	
and	causing	damage	to	public	or	private	property.

The	threat	and	hazard	specific	response	section	provides	
unique	procedures,	roles,	and	responsibilities	that	apply	
to	a	specific	hazard.	They	often	include	provisions	and	
applications	for	warning	the	public	and	disseminating	
emergency	public	information.

Threat	and	hazard	specific	annexes	do	not	repeat	content,	
but	build	on	information	in	the	functional	annexes	and	basic	
plan.	Repeating	information	is	not	advisable	for	the	following	
reasons:

• School	staff	and	students	should	learn	and	exercise	simple
procedures	that	apply	to	all	hazards

• The	hazard	specific	annexes	present	only	hazard-unique
information

• Repeating	procedures	increases	the	possibility	that	there
will	be	inconsistencies	in	procedures	that	could	lead	to
confusion	during	an	incident

• The	plan	becomes	larger	and	more	difficult	for	users	to
comprehend

Each	building-level	Emergency	Response	Plan	(ERP)	is	
customized	to	address	specific	threat	and	hazard	protocols	to	
fit	their	unique	circumstances.	Planning,	training,	drills	and	
table-top	exercises	conducted	with	local	emergency	and	safety	
officials	to	assist	in	the	development	of	effective	procedures	
and	protocols.	These	activities	will	also	help	a	school	evaluate	
the	appropriateness	of	the	procedures	in	the	plan.	They	assist	
with	modifications	or	updating	as	necessary	to	ensure	that	
the	procedures	are	sufficient	to	provide	a	safe	environment	for	
students,	staff	and	visitors.

A	list	of	potential	hazards	that	is	not	all-inclusive	is	included	
on	the	following	example	page.

Threat and Hazard Type Examples

Natural Hazards • Earthquakes
• Tornadoes
• Lightning
• Severe	wind
• Hurricanes
• Floods
• Wildfires
• Extreme	temperatures
• Landslides	or	mudslides
• Winter	precipitation
• Wildlife

Technological Hazards • Explosions	or	accidental	release	of	toxins	from	industrial	plants
• Accidental	release	of	hazardous	materials	from	within	the	school,	such	as
gas	leaks	or	laboratory	spills

• Hazardous	materials	releases	from	major	highways	or	railroads
• Radiological	releases	from	nuclear	power	stations
• Dam	failure
• Power	failure
• Water	failure

Biological Hazards • Infectious	diseases,	such	as	pandemic	influenza,	extensively	drug-resistant
tuberculosis, Staphylococcus aureus, and meningitis

• Contaminated	food	outbreaks,	including	Salmonella,	botulism,	and	E.	coli
• Toxic	materials	present	in	school	laboratories

Adversarial, Incidental, and 
Human-caused Threats

• Fire
• Active	shooters
• Criminal	threats	or	actions
• Gang	violence
• Bomb	threats
• Domestic	violence	and	abuse
• Suicide



16

B. Planning Assumptions and Limitations

Stating	the	planning	assumptions	allows	the	school	to	deviate	
from	the	plan	if	certain	assumptions	prove	not	to	be	true	
during	operations.	The	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	District-
Wide	School	Safety	Plan	and	individual	Building-Level	
Emergency	Response	Plans	are	established	under	the	following	
assumptions:
• The	school	community	will	continue	to	be	exposed	and
subject	to	threats/hazards	and	vulnerabilities	described	in	the
Threat/Hazards	Assessments	Annex,	as	well	as	lesser	threats/
hazards	that	may	develop	in	the	future

• A	major	disaster	could	occur	at	any	time	and	at	any	place.	
In	many	cases	dissemination	of	warning	to	the	public	and
implementation	of	increased	readiness	measures	may	be
possible;	however,	most	emergency	situations	occur	with	little
or	no	warning

• A	single	site	incident	could	occur	at	any	time	without
warning	and	the	employees	of	the	school	affected	cannot	and
should	not,	wait	for	direction	from	local	response	agencies.	
Action	is	required	immediately	to	save	lives	and	protect
school	property

• There	may	be	a	number	of	injuries	of	varying	degrees	of
seriousness	to	faculty,	staff	and/or	students.	Rapid	and
appropriate	response	can	reduce	the	number	and	severity	of
injuries

• Outside	assistance	from	local	fire,	law	enforcement	and
emergency	services	will	be	available	in	most	serious	incidents.	

Because	it	takes	time	to	request	and	dispatch	external	
assistance,	it	is	essential	for	the	school	to	be	prepared	to	carry	
out	the	initial	incident	response	until	emergency	responders	
arrive	at	the	incident	scene

• Actions	taken	before	an	incident	can	stop	or	reduce	incident-
related	losses

• Maintaining	the	Building-Level	ERP	and	providing
frequent	opportunities	for	training	and	exercising	the
plan	for	stakeholders	(staff,	students,	parents/guardians,	
first	responders,	etc.)	can	improve	the	school’s	readiness	to
respond	to	incidents

C. Initial Response

Building/site	personnel	are	likely	to	be	the	first	on	the	scene	of	
an	incident	in	a	school	setting.	Staff	and	faculty	are	expected	
to	respond	as	appropriate	and	notify	the	principal,	or	designee,	
until	command	is	transferred	to	someone	more	qualified	and/
or	to	an	emergency	response	agency	with	legal	authority	to	
assume	responsibility.	Staff	will	seek	guidance	and	direction	
from	the	BOCES	and	emergency	responders.	General	staff	
responsibilities	are	listed	in	the	General	Response	section	of	
this	plan.

Any	staff	person	or	faculty	in	a	building	that	sees	or	is	aware	of	
an	emergency	shall	activate	the	ERP.

Threat And Hazard Planning Guidelines



17

A	medical	emergency	is	a	result	of	a	minor	or	major	illness	or	
injury	to	an	individual,	and	can	be	of	such	severity	as	to	be	life	
threatening,	or	merely	cause	the	victim	discomfort	or	pain.	The	
district	does	not	expect	unlicensed	staff	to	provide	medical	care.	
The	district	does	expect	unlicensed	staff	to	call	for	emergency	
assistance	(i.e.	911,	school	nurse)	and	stay	with	the	victim	until	
help	arrives.	In	each	case,	the	guiding	principles	are	to	provide	
appropriate	care	until	competent	medical	or	parental	care	is	
secured.	Emergency	care	is	not	authorized	beyond	proper	first	
aid.	First	aid	is	treatment	that	will	attempt	to	protect	the	life	
and	comfort	of	the	victim	until	authorized	medical	treatment	
is	available,	or	in	the	case	of	a	student,	until	the	child	is	placed	
under	the	care	of	the	parent	or	guardian.	Staff	should	use	
judicious	avoidance	and	standard	precautions	in	managing	
all	emergencies.	School	nurses	follow	their	standard	district	
policies,	procedures	and	training	not	listed	in	this	section.

The	number	of	medical	emergencies	that	can	develop	is	
potentially	endless.	Each	Building-Level	ERP	will	designate	
Building-Level	Response	Teams	that	may	be	used	to	respond	in	
a	medical	emergency.

The	district	has	also	developed	policy	and	procedures	for	
contacting	parents,	guardians,	or	persons	in	a	parental	relation	
to	a	student	in	the	event	of	an	implied	or	direct	threat	of	
violence	by	a	student	against	themselves,	including	threat	of	
suicide.

Medical Emergencies And Mental Health



18

Building-Level Emergency Response Plans (ERP)

Introductory Material

Plan Development and Maintenance

Each Monroe 2–Orleans BOCES Building-Level Emergency 
Response Plan (ERP) will be developed by the Building Emergency 
Response Team under the direction of the Safety and Security  
Coordinator. 8 NYCRR Section 155.17 (b) and 155.17 (c)(11) - 
requires that each school shall have a Building Emergency Response 
Team that consists of representatives from the following groups: 
teacher, administrator, and parent organizations, school safety 
personnel and other school personnel, community members, local 
law enforcement officials, local ambulance or other emergency 
response agencies, and any other representatives the board 
of education, chancellor or other governing body deems appropriate. 
A Building-Level Response Team and Post-Incident Response Team 
will also be appointed.

The	Building-Level	Emergency	Response	Team	is	responsible	
for	the	overall	development,	maintenance,	and	revision	of	
the	Building-Level	ERP	and	for	coordinating	training	and	
exercising	the	Building-Level	ERP..	Team	members	are	
expected	to	work	closely	together	to	make	recommendations	
for	revising	and	enhancing	the	plan.

Distribution of the Plan

8 NYCRR Section 155.17 (e)(3) mandates that a copy of the ERP and 
any amendments shall be filed with the appropriate local law 
enforcement agency and with the New York State Police within 
thirty days of adoption. This function will be completed by the Safety 
and Security Coordinator

Send Building Level Safety Plans to:
New	York	State	Police	Headquarters	
Field	Command	Attn:	Safe	Schools	NY
1220	Washington	Avenue,	Building	22
Albany,	NY	12226

Or by email to:
info@safeschools.ny.gov

Record of Distribution
Copies	of	the	ERP,	including	appendices	and	annexes	are	
recommended	to	be	distributed	to	your	local	fire	department,	
area	law	enforcement	(including	village,	town,	county	and	state	
police),	local	and	county	emergency	management,	the	District	
Superintendent	and	any	other	persons	deemed	appropriate	by	
the	School	Building	Safety	Team.



19

A. Closings Procedures

The	decision	to	close	school	is	based	on	the	nature	of	the	
emergency	and	the	expected	impact	that	the	emergency	will	
have	on	student	safety	and	welfare.	Most	often,	school	closings	
are	the	result	of	inclement	weather	conditions	that	adversely	
affect	the	safety	of	student	walkers	and/or	bus	riders.	The	
district	may	close	all	of	its	schools	or	only	one	of	its	schools,	
depending	upon	the	specific	nature	of	the	emergency.	It	may	
also	elect	a	late	starting	time	or	an	early	dismissal,	depending	on	
an	up-to-the-minute	appraisal	of	the	specific	situation.

The	District	Superintendent	(or	designee)	will	make	every	
effort	to	decide	school	closings	in	a	timely	manner.	This	will	be	
done	after	the	district	has	thoroughly	evaluated	the	situation	
and	after	consulting	with	the,	police,	weather	bureau,	and	other	
district	departments.	All	school	closings	will	be	reported	to	
local	radio	and	television	stations	for	broadcast	to	the	general	
public	and	posted	to	the	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	website.	
An	automated	phone	call	will	also	inform	families	of	emergency	
closings	whenever	possible.

Whenever	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	buildings/programs	
close,	all	afternoon	and	evening	activities	will	ordinarily	be	
cancelled.

Parents	should	instruct	their	children	on	where	they	are	to	
stay	when	school	is	closed,	or	when	school	is	dismissed	early.	
Working	parents	should	make	prior	arrangements	with	friends	
and	neighbors	for	the	temporary	housing	of	their	children	in	
the	event	that	an	emergency	arises	while	they	are	not	at	home.

While	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	will	make	every	effort	to	
make	decisions	that	are	in	the	students’	best	interest,	weather,	
street,	and	sidewalk	conditions	can	vary.	Weather	conditions	
can	also	change	radically	within	a	very	short	period	of	time.	For	
these	reasons,	parents	are	always	the	final	authority	in	deciding	
if	their	children	are	to	be	sent	to	school	during	any	given	
emergency	when	the	schools	are	open.

The	communications	division	is	responsible	for	notifying	the	
appropriate	news	agency	to	announce	school	closings	or	delays.	
The	list	of	news	agencies	notified	will	be	maintained	by	the	
communications	manager.

B. Early Dismissal Procedures

1.	If	a	building	needs	to	evacuate	to	another	location:
• As	soon	as	possible,	the	building	will	notify	transportation
that	there	is	a	possibility	that	we	may	have	to	evacuate
the	building	and	transport	the	students	to	an	alternative
location

• Transportation	will	transport	students	to	the	building
that	is	designated	in	the	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES
Emergency	Response	Plan	(ERP)	unless	directed	to
take	the	students	to	a	different	location	by	the	Incident
Commander

2.	If	there	is	a	potential	for	an	evacuation	to	send	students	home
the	process	is	as	follows:
• As	soon	as	possible,	the	building	will	notify	transportation
that	there	is	a	possibility	that	the	building	needs	to	be
evacuated	and	the	BOCES	needs	to	transport	the	students
to	their	home	districts

• Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	will	work	with	component
districts	to	advise	them	that	the	students	are	being	sent
back	to	their	home	districts	early	so	those	districts	can
make	proper	arrangements

General Emergency Response Planning
The	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	District-Wide	Safety	
Plan	should	provide	the	framework	for	the	Building-Level	
Emergency	Response	Plan.
1.	 School	cancellations
2.	 Early	dismissal
3.	 Evacuation
4.	 Lockout
5.	 Lockdown
6.	 Shelter	in	Place
7.	 Hold	in	Place

1) School Cancellation Procedures:
School	Cancellation	means	that	school	will	not	be	in	session	for	
one	or	more	days	due	to	an	actual	or	impending	emergency.	In	
the	event	that	the	District	Superintendent	or	designee	cancels	
school,	this	decision	will	be	broadcasted	on	local	TV	and	radio	
channels.	In	addition,	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	will	utilize	
multiple	means,	including	automated	dialing	systems,	to	alert	
parents	and/or	staff.	

The	District	Superintendent	shall	notify	the	State	Education	
Department	Commissioner	as	soon	as	possible	whenever	the	
emergency	plan	or	building-level	school	safety	plan	is	activated	
and	results	in	the	closing	of	a	school	building	in	the	district.	
Such	information	need	not	be	provided	for	routine	snow	
emergency	days.

2) Early Dismissal Procedures:
Early	Dismissal	means	returning	students	to	their	homes	or	
their	home	school	district	before	the	end	of	the	school	day.	The	
District	Superintendent	or	designee	makes	this	decision.	

Information	on	this	decision	will	be	distributed	to	those	
affected	by	this	matter		at	that	time.	Staff	will	be	advised	on	
what	their	responsibilities	are.	

Emergency Closings



20

3) Evacuation Procedures:
Evacuation	means	the	moving	of	staff	and	students	from	their	
place	of	work	or	study	to	a	predetermined	location	deemed	
more	suitable	for	their	protection.	These	plans	are	available	in	
each	Building-Level	Emergency	Response	Plan	(ERP).

For	both	early	dismissal	and	evacuation,	transportation	is	
provided	by	the	component	school	districts	upon	notification	
from	the	District	Superintendent	or	the	designee	and	
is	coordinated	with	the	key	personnel	responsible	for	
transportation	within	the	various	BOCES	programs.		
Sheltering	agreements	are	contained	within	the		
Building-Level	ERPs	and	will	be	verified	annually.	
Communications	to	parents	are	coordinated	by	the	
Communications	Manager	via	communiqués	to	the	media	and	
to	the	home	school	districts.	Parents	are	also	provided	annual	
written	notices	to	monitor	radio	broadcasts	in	emergency	
situations	and	potential	emergency	situations	such	as	severe	
weather.

Sheltering	sites	will	be	included	as	a	part	of	each	
Building-Level	Emergency	Response	Plan.

4) Lockout:
Lockout	is	the	response	to	an	actual	or	potential	threat	from	
outside	the	school	building.	

An	example	of	such	a	threat	might	be	an	escaped	fugitive,	
custodial	interference	or	a	disgruntled	employee	or	spouse.	
Where	the	situation	warrants,	the	school	faculty,	staff,	and	
students	are	aware	of,	but	not	disrupted	by	such	a	response	
being	activated.	Consequently,	the	school	day	continues	as	
normal	except	for	the	termination	of	all	outside	activities.	In	
some	cases,	the	details	of	a	lockout	do	not	need	to	be	shared	
with	the	students	to	protect	the	identity	of	the	individuals	
involved	and	minimize	disruption	to	the	educational	process.

Lockout Objectives
• To	keep	any	threat	of	violence	or	dangerous	incident	out	of
the	building

• To	promote	minimal	disruption	to	the	education	process
when	there	is	a	potential	or	actual	incident	outside	the
building

Lockout Procedures
• Announce	‘”lockout.”	Use	plain	language	to	announce	the
lockout

• Activate	Building-Level	Emergency	Response	Plan	(ERP)
and	implement	Incident	Command	System	(ICS)	in
accordance	with	safety	plan	instructions

• If	a	building	is	in	lockout	because	they	were	notified	by	police
of	a	local	situation,	there	is	no	need	to	call	to	advise	police
of	the	lockout.	However,	the	building	should	keep	the	police
advised	of	any	change	in	status	to	your	building

• If	the	building	is	initiating	the	lockout	due	to	a	situation	or
potential	incident	discovered	at	the	building,	they	should
advise	police	of	the	lockout	and	what	is	anticipated

• Lock	all	exterior	doors	and	windows
• Terminate	all	outside	activities
• Entry	to	the	building	may	be	gained	only	on	a
case-to-case-basis,	and	only	through	a	locked	and	monitored
door

• Classes	otherwise	continue	as	normal
• A	lockout	is	lifted	when	the	external	threat	is	resolved
Notification	of	such	resolution	may	be	through	any	means
appropriate	for	the	respective	building

• Upon	resolution	of	an	incident	and	termination	of	the
lockout,	contact	police	to	advise	them	of	such

Steps	to	implement	lockout	after	a	possible	threat	has	been	
identified:
1.	In	an	event	of	an	emergency,	the	executive	principal,	assistant
principal,	building/program	administrator,	or	his/her	designee
will	notify	all	building	occupants	that	lockout	has	been
implemented	and	will	call	911	(unless	lockout	was	initiated
by	the	police)

2.	Activate	Building-Level	Emergency	Response	Plan	(ERP)
and	implement	Incident	Command	System	(ICS)	in
accordance	with	safety	plan	instructions

3.	Have	students	who	are	outside	immediately	return	to	the
building

4.	Assigned	staff	will	lock	and	secure	all	exterior	doors	and
entrances

5.	Monitor	main	entrances	and	allow	only	authorized	personnel
into	the	building

6.	Call	to	return	to	the	normal	operations	will	be	given	by	the
executive	principal,	assistant	principal,	building/program
administrator,	or	his/her	designee	following	approval	from
Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	Administration	and	local
authorities

5) Lockdown
A	lockdown	is	the	response	to	the	worst-case	scenario,	and	
must	be	executed	with	appropriate	urgency	and	seriousness.	
A	building	administrator,	faculty,	or	staff	member	may	initiate	
a	lockdown	based	upon	an	actual	or	imminent	threat	(not	
including	bomb	threats)	or	violent	event.

Lockdown Objectives
• To	minimize	injury	and	death
• To	facilitate	effective	response
• To	move	as	many	people	as	possible	to	a	safe	place
• To	neutralize	the	threat

Lockdown Response
• Announce	“lockdown.”	Do	not	use	codes.	Call	911	and	report
your	situation.	Consider	a	lockout	for	adjacent	buildings	as	well

• Immediately	gather	students	from	hallways	into	classrooms
or	offices.	This	includes	common	areas	and	restrooms
immediately	adjacent	to	classrooms

Emergency Closings



21

• Lock	classroom	door(s)	and	have	students	take	a	seated
position	on	the	floor	next	to	the	wall	out	of	view	from	the
door	window.	Stay	out	of	sight

• Do	not	cover	windows
• Leave	the	window	blinds	as	they	are
• Turn	off	classroom	and/or	office	lights	if	possible
• Document	and	attend	to	any	injuries	as	well	as	possible
• No	one	should	be	allowed	to	enter	or	leave	a	classroom	or
office	under	any	circumstances

• Do	not	answer	or	communicate	through	your	locked	door
• Do	not	allow	anyone	into	your	secured	area
• Do	not	answer	a	classroom	telephone
• Do	not	respond	to	a	fire	alarm	unless	imminent	signs	of	fire
are	observed.	Doing	so	could	compromise	the	safety	of	those
already	secured

• Do	not	talk	within	the	secured	area,	except	only	as	absolutely
necessary

• Do	not	respond	to	the	intercom,	public	address	system,	or
other	announcements

• Take	attendance	including	additions.	Missing	students’		last
known	locations	should	be	noted.	Keep	this	record	for	when
you	are	released	from	the	lockdown

Lockdown	will	end	only	when	you	are	physically	released	
from	your	room	by	emergency	responders	or	other	authority. 
Responding	law	enforcement	should	have	master	key	to	
conduct	the	release.	Do	not	rely	on	school	personnel	with	keys	
to	be	available	to	assist	in	the	release.

6) Shelter in Place
There	are	times	when	it	is	necessary	to	move	the	building/office	
population	to	a	single	or	multiple	location(s)	in	the	building/
office	building.	This	is	called	a	Shelter	in	Place.	In	most	cases,	
a	shelter	in	place	is	done	when	there	is	a	threat	of	or	actual	
weather	related	incident	or	a	bomb	threat.

Shelter in Place Objectives
• To	minimize	injury	or	death
• To	locate	and	contain	any	device	or	weather	damage
• To	facilitate	emergency	responses
• To	establish	safe	routes	and	designated	areas

Shelter in Place Response
• Announce	“Shelter	in	Place”.	Instruct	everyone	to	remain
where	they	are	and	scan	their	respective	area	for	anything	out
of	the	ordinary

• Call	911
• Activate	Building-Level	Emergency	Response	Team.	Instruct
them	to	scan	common	areas	for	anything	unusual

• If	no	device	is	found,	decide	whether	to	continue	school	or
evacuate.	The	school	district	administration	may	consult	with
police	to	make	their	decision

• If	a	device	is	found,	follow	“For	a	Specific	Bomb	Threat”	
Procedures

For a Specific Bomb Threat:
• Announce	“Shelter	in	Place”
• Call	911
• Activate	Building-Level	Emergency	Response	Team.	
Instruct	them	to	find	an	internal	location	to	move	the	school
population	to,	scan	and	clear	the	location	and	a	route	to	it.	
Move	those	in	the	affected	area	to	the	established	and	cleared
location

• Assist	first	responders	as	necessary

For a Weather-Related Situation:
• Announce	“Shelter	in	Place”	with	instructions	to	go	to	the
hallway	or	an	internal	room	without	windows	and	sit	down
on	the	floor

• Activate	Building-Level	Emergency	Response	Team
• Call	911	for	any	emergency	assistance	if	needed

(7) Hold in Place 
Hold	in	Place	is	a	response	to	medical	emergency	or	any	other	
incident	where	hallways	would	need	to	be	clear.

Hold	in	Place	Objectives:
• To	stop	movement	within	the	building
• Continue	normal	classroom	activity

Hold	in	Place	Procedures:
• Announce	“hold	in	place.”
• Use	clear,	concise	language	to	provide	direction	to	the	school
based	on	the	situation

Execute Hold in Place
• Students	in	hallways,	bathrooms	or	other	common	areas	will
return	to	their	classroom.	If	the	hold	in	place	is	announced
between	class	periods,	students	will	return	to	their	previous
class	to	await	instructions.	If	the	route	is	blocked,	students
will	go	to	the	nearest	classroom	and	advise	the	teacher	that
they	are	unable	to	get	to	their	class	and	await	instructions

• All	available	staff	members	will	assist	in	maintaining	order
and	accounting	for	students.	Remain	in	position	until	further
instruction	is	given	or	remaining	in	place	compromises	safety

Emergency Closings



22

Responses	to	specific	emergencies	are	outlined	in	greater	detail	
in	each	Building-Level	Emergency	Response	Plan.

A. Threats of Violence

Threats	of	violence	to	the	school,	staff	or	students	are	seriously	
considered.	Administration	and	local	authorities	will	be	
contacted	for	all	threats.

B. Policies and Procedures for Responding to
Implied or Direct Threats by Students, Staff and
Visitors

Anyone	issuing	an	implied	or	direct	threat	will	be	reported	to	
the	building/program	administrator.	The	building/program	
administrator	will	evaluate	the	seriousness	of	the	threat	and	
refer	to	the	site	plan	for	violent	threats.	

Consequences	for	anyone	issuing	threats	of	violence	may	
include	but	not	be	limited	to:
1.	 Disciplinary	action	as	outlined	in	the	Monroe	2–Orleans

BOCES	Code	of	Conduct
2.	 Referral	to	counseling
3.	 Law	enforcement	involvement
4.	 Superintendent’s	hearing	and	possible	suspension	for

students	or	State	Education	Department	(SED)	sanctions
for	staff

C. Warning Signs for Students at Risk of
Committing School Violence

You	can	increase	your	ability	to	recognize	early	warning	signs	
by	establishing	close,	caring,	and	supportive	relationships	with	
students	so	that	you	know	them	well	enough	to	note	changes	in	
their	behavior	patterns.	Be	aware	that	one	of	these	signs	alone	
may	not	be	an	indicator	but	one	sign	may	lead	you	to	look	for	
more	signs.	Try	to	understand	violence	and	aggression	within	
context	(culture/family	background),	avoid	stereotypes,	view	
warning	signs	within	a	developmental	context,	and	understand	
that	a	child	may	typically	exhibit	multiple	signs.

Early Warning Signs for Students at Risk:
1.	 Social	withdrawal
2.	 Excessive	feelings	of	isolation	and	being	alone
3.	 Excessive	feelings	of	rejection
4.	 Having	been	a	victim	of	violence
5.	 Feelings	of	being	picked	on	and	persecuted
6.	 Low	interest	in	school/poor	academic	performance
7.	 Expression	of	violence	in	writings	and	drawings
8.	 Uncontrolled	anger
9.	 Impulsive	or	chronic	hitting,	intimidating,	and	bullying
10.	 History	of	discipline	problems
11.	 Past	history	of	violent/aggressive	behavior	and/or	violence

toward	peers
12.	 Intolerance	for	differences/prejudices
13.	 Drug	and/or	alcohol	use

14.	 Caregivers	have	a	history	of	drugs/alcohol	involvement
15.	Peer	group	reinforces	antisocial	behaviors
16.	Learned	attitudes	accepting	aggressive	behavior	as	“normal”	

and	effective	in	solving	problems
17.	 High	level	of	violence	in	the	home,	neighborhood,	or

media
18.	 Poor	attendance	and	numerous	school	suspensions
19.	 Affiliation	with	gangs
20.	 Difficulty	with	social	skills	and	poor	peer	relations
21.	 Easily	influenced	by	others/tendency	to	copycat
22.	 History	of	parental	rejection,	inconsistent	discipline	and

lack	of	supervision
23.	 Difficulty	controlling	impulses	and	emotions
24.	 Inappropriate	access	to,	possession	of,	and	use	of	firearms
25.	 Serious	threats	of	violence
26.	 Poor	personal	hygiene
27.	 Cruelty	to	animals
28.	 Setting	of	fires
29.	 Lack	of	remorse	or	empathy	others

Imminent Warning Signs:
1.	 Serious	physical	fighting	with	peers	or	family	members
2.	 Severe	destruction	of	property
3.	 Severe	rage	for	minor	reasons
4.	 Detailed	threats	of	lethal	violence
5.	 Possession	and/use	of	firearms	and	other	weapons
6.	 Self-injurious	behaviors	or	suicide	threats/expressions	of

hopelessness
7.	 Irrational	beliefs	and	ideas
8.	 Verbal,	non-verbal,	or	written	threats	or	intimidation
9.	 Fascination	with	weaponry/bombs	and/or	violent	acts
10.	 Expression	of	plan	to	hurt	self	or	others
11.	 Externalization	of	blame
12.	 Unreciprocated	romantic	obsession
13.	 Fear	reaction	among	fellow	students	or	faculty
14.	 Drastic	changes	in	belief	systems
15.	 New	or	increased	stress	at	home	or	school
16.	 Inability	to	take	criticism
17.	 Feelings	of	being	victimized
18.	 Intoxication	from	alcohol	or	drugs
19.	 Violence	toward	inanimate	objects
20.	 Steals	or	sabotages	projects	or	equipment
21.	 Lack	of	concern	for	the	safety	of	others

If	you	suspect	that	one	of	your	students	is	exhibiting	signs	or	is	
at	risk	of	violence,	contact	your	supervisor.

Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	has	a	Threat	Assessment	Plan	in	
place	that	may	be	activated	to	address	related	issues.	

D. Procedures for Responding to Acts of Violence

1. Student fight
a) Staff	responsibilities:
1.	 If	the	student	fight	involves	a	physical	confrontation,	

the	staff	member(s)	should	use	their	best	judgment
regarding	their	own	ability	to	manage	the	student
and	proceed	accordingly

Section III: Response for Specific Emergencies



23

2.	 Call	for	assistance	from	the	main	office	or
appropriate	administrative	office.

3.	 Make	verbal	contact	in	a	calm,	low-toned	voice
4.	 If	the	behavior	does	not	cease,	shout,	“stop”	and	then

lower	your	voice	and	encourage	students	to	talk
about	the	issues	someplace	else.

5.	 Try	to	get	individuals	to	a	more	isolated	area	so	they
can	calm	themselves	without	losing	face,	or	try	to
get	the	area	emptied	of	other	students	so	there	is	a
smaller	audience	and	less	danger.

6.	 Do	not	leave	the	students	alone	until	they	are
calmed	down.

7.	 Discuss	their	behavior	and	its	consequences	only
after	they	are	calm.

8.	 Never	grab	or	touch	a	violent	student	unless	they	are
causing	harm	to	themselves	or	others.

9.	 If	students	will	not	disengage,	remove	other	students
from	the	area.

10.	If	the	student	refuses	to	cooperate	by	rendering	the
above	steps	invalid,	notify	the	principal/building
program	administrator	that	you	need	help	with	a
violence	problem.

11.	Complete	and	file	a	referral	form.

b) Building/Program	Administrator’s	responsibilities:
1.	 Assess	the	situation	and	intervene	if	requested	by

staff.
2.	 Send	all	available	staff	to	the	area	to	demonstrate	a

show	of	force.
3.	 Call	911	if	students	refuse	to	cooperate.
4.	 If	necessary,	call	the	District	Superintendent’s	office

who	will	ensure	that	the	necessary	administrators	are
notified,	from	among	the	following:
• Operations	&	Maintenance
• Business/Administration
• Safety/Security
• Media	Relations

5.	 Assist	police	in	any	way	requested.
6.	 Follow	disciplinary	action	according	to	the

Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	Code	of	Conduct.
7.	 File	an	incident	report.

2. Intruders
This	would	consist	of	any	person	entering	the	school	that	
is	not	school	personnel	or	a	registered	student.	Staff	and	
faculty	should	automatically	recognize	and	question	the	
presence	of	unauthorized	persons	on	school	grounds.

Directives	to	all	staff:
- Determine	whether	the	person	is	a	legitimate	visitor

or	a	threat	to	school	safety
- Escort	all	visitors	to	the	office	to	sign-in
- If	a	person	is	suspected	of	posing	a	threat:

• Immediately	contact	the	building/program
administrator	who	will	call	911	for	the	police

• building/program	administrator	will	initiate	the
school	lockdown	procedure	as	outlined	by	the
Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	District-Wide	Safety
Plan.

• Do	not	engage	in	a	violent	confrontation.	Take
every	other	step	to	ensure	your	safety	and	that	of
students

• Identify	the	person,	their	location	and	note	if	any
weapons	visible

• Contain	the	situation	and,	if	possible,	remove	all
innocent	persons

3. Armed Student/Intruder
In	the	event	of	an	armed	student	or	intruder,	staff	
responsibilities:		include	initiating	lockdown	procedure	as	
outlined	by	the	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	District-Wide	
Safety	Plan.	
1.	 Notify	teachers	of	intruder	in	the	building.	and	instruct

to	stay	in	classrooms	and	lock	doors.	
2.	 If	the	intruder	is	in	the	hall,	staff	should	contact	the

office	by	phone.
3.	 If	in	the	classroom,	teacher	should	use	the	phone	to

request	assistance	from	the	office.
4.	 If	shots	are	fired	or	other	violent	behavior	occurs,	

evacuate	students	to	the	safest	position	away	from
intruder.	Otherwise,	students	should	be	in	the	classroom
and	the	classroom	doors	should	be	locked	to	prevent
entry	by	the	intruder.

4. Kidnapping/Hostage Taking
this	would	be	a	person	taken	and	held,	against	their	will,	
by	means	of	physical	force	or	threat	of	harm	and	held	by	
an	individual	until	certain	conditions	are	met.	A	hostage	
situation	must	be	carefully	surveyed	and	evaluated.	The	
safety	of	the	hostage(s),	faculty,	and	police	is	the	most	
important	consideration	in	any	hostage	situation.	Trained	
negotiators	know	that	the	more	time	that	is	gained,	the	
more	likely	it	is	the	situation	will	be	concluded	without	
violence.	

• Initiate	Lockdown
• Identify	the	hostage	taker,	location,	and	any	weapons
• Contain	the	situation	and,	if	possible,	remove	all

innocent	persons
• Let	the	professionals	negotiate.

If	you	are	taken	hostage:
• Don’t	force	the	issue	physically	or	mentally,	keep	a

distance;	don’t	make	quick	moves
• Change	your	mindset	from	one	of	authority	to

hostage
• Stay	calm
• Do	not	become	a	spokesperson	for	the	system
• Do	not	defend	the	system/school
• Do	not	negotiate,	dictate,	confront,	antagonize,	

defend	or	plead

Response for Specific Emergencies



24

• Make	yourself	human.	For	example,	talk	about	your
wife,	husband,	children,	etc.	If	you	are	seen	as	a
human	being	and	less	like	a	stranger	the	potential
for	injury	decreases

• Carefully	evaluate	an	escape	plan.	Any	escape	does
have	the	potential	to	cause	injury	to	you	and	others

5. Severe Weather
When	a	severe	weather	warning	is	received,	staff	will	be	
notified	to	escort	students	to	safe	areas	in	their	respective	
buildings.	Blinds	will	be	closed	to	minimize	flying	
glass.	Duck	and	cover	or	sheltering	under	desks	will	be	
implemented	if	necessary.

6. Civil Disturbance
Civil	disturbances	can	include	riots,	sit-ins,	racial	conflicts	
and	long	altercations.	Contact	the	building/program	
administrator	providing	location	of	disturbance,	what	is	
taking	place,	number	of	people	involved	and	intentions	of	
the	group	if	known.	The	building/program	administrator	
will	contact	the	District	Superintendent	and	police	if	
assistance	is	needed.	The	building/program	administrator	
will	notify	staff.	

The	staff	will	move	students	away	from	areas	where	
violent	confrontations	may	occur.	The	building/program	
administrator	will	isolate	problematic	individuals	(police	
assistance	may	be	necessary).	Schools	should	not	be	
dismissed	unless	it	can	be	achieved	without	risk	to	students	
and	staff.

The	District	Superintendent	will	follow	up	with	police,	
community	leaders	and	other	appropriate	parties	for	opening	
school	the	next	day.	The	building/program	administrator	
will	update	staff	before	school	begins.	Counselors	may	also	
need	to	be	called	in	and	be	available	the	following	day.	The	
Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	Crisis	Intervention	Team	has	
a	developed	plan	to	enact	in	accordance	with	individual	
building	administrative	team.

7. Student Transportation Incident
The	district	school	bus	driver	should	contact	his/her	
transportation	director/supervisor	immediately	with	any	
type	of	school	transportation	accident.	

The	driver	will	ensure	children	are	out	of	the	danger	area	
and	then	through	the	building/program	administrator’s	
office,	request	assistance	for	ambulance,	fire	or	another	
vehicle	to	transport	students.	School	districts	will	notify	
Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	when	an	accident	has	occurred.	

The	transportation	director/supervisor	will	notify	the	
district	office	of	the	incident	and	then	drive	out	to	accident	
scene.	The	district	office	will	contact	the	Building/Program	
Administrator.	The	transportation	director/supervisor	will	
update	the	district	administration	on	a	frequent	basis.	If	the	

students	need	to	be	transported	to	the	hospital,	the	District	
Superintendent	will	assign	a	designee	to	go	to	the	hospital	
to	be	on-site.	A	collaborative	decision	by	the	component	
district	and	Monroe	2–Orleans	BOCES	will	be	made		
regarding	parent	notification	of	children	who	are	injured	or	
will	be	late	in	arriving	home.

8. Gas Leak Procedure
If	there	is	a	suspected	or	confirmed	gas	leak	in	the	school/
site	notify	the	building/program	administrator	immediately.	
The	building/program	administrator	should	call	911	and	
announce	evacuation	away	from	the	affected	area.	Do	not	
use	the	fire	alarm	to	activate	evacuation	if	you	have	a	bell	
type	alarm.

Teachers	should	evacuate	to	designated	areas	and	account	
for	students,	then	maintain	supervision.		

The	building/program	administrator	will	determine	if	
and	when	evacuation	is	complete.	The	building/program	
administrator	should	then	check	with	teachers	for	
unaccounted	children	and	notify	the	Safety	and	Security	
Coordinator.	The	Safety	and	Security	Coordinator	should	
then	notify	the	Emergency	Response	Team	and	set	up	a	
command	post.	

The	director	of	operations	and	maintenance	will	have	staff	
turn	off	gas/HVAC	systems	as	appropriate,	determine	the	
source	of	leak	and	establish	a	repair	plan.	The	director	of	
operation	and	maintenance	will	also	notify	the	Safety	and	
Security	Coordinator	of	the	plan.

Nurses	should	be	prepared	to	provide	emergency	first	aid	
measures	at	the	location	where	students	are	gathered.	Bus	
drivers	should	be	activated	to	standby	status	in	case	re-entry	
to	the	building	is	not	possible.

9. Bomb Threat
All	bomb	threats	will	be	reported	to	the	building/program	
administrator	immediately.	When	a	bomb	threat	is	received	
via	telephone	the	recipient	will	record	information	on	the	
telephone	threat	checklist	if	possible.	

A	bomb	threat	may	also	be	initiated	by	other	methods	of	
communication.	The	building/program	administrator	will	
initiate	the	appropriate	threat	response.

10. Chemical Spill
For	chemical	spills	inside	the	building,	staff	members	will	
keep	students	away	from	the	spill	and	notify	the	building/
program	administrator	immediately.	Building	evacuation	
and	the	assistance	of	outside	agencies	may	be	necessary	
depending	on	the	nature	of	the	spill.

Response for Specific Emergencies



25

For	hazardous	chemical	spills	outside,	students	will	be	
sheltered	inside	and	air	intakes	will	be	shut	off	and	sealed	if	
necessary.	The	assistance	of	outside	agencies	may	be	required	
depending	on	the	nature	of	the	spill.

11. Fire/Explosion
Any	staff	or	student,	who	sees	smoke	or	fire,	is	directed	to	
pull	the	fire	alarm	to	evacuate	the	building.	The	building/
program	administrator	will	notify	911	to	ensure	the	alarm	
was	received.	Staff	will	assist	students	from	the	building	
following	drill	procedures,	take	attendance	and	supervise	
students	until	the	emergency	is	over.	The	fire	department	
will	determine	if	and	when	the	building	is	safe	for	re-entry.

12. Biological Threat
If	a	biological	threat	is	received	via	telephone,	the	recipient	
will	record	information	of	the	threat	and	submit	to	the	
building/program	administrator.

If	a	letter	or	package	is	received	which	threatens	a	biological	
exposure	the	recipient	will:
1.	 Immediately	reclose	the	letter	or	package,	cover	with	a

box	or	larger	envelope	and	avoid	further	contact.
2.	 Immediately	prevent	persons	from	leaving	or	entering

the	room.
3.	 Notify	building/program	administrator	outside	of

exposure	area.
4.	 Avoid	touching	face	or	mucus	membranes	until	they

can	thoroughly	wash	with	soap	and	water.
5.	 Reduce	air	movement	(shut	off	fans,	close	windows).
6.	 The	Building/Program	Administrator	will	then	call

911	for	assistance	and	follow	the	directions	regarding
the	movement	of	students	and	staff.

13. Radiological Threat
Upon	being	notified	of	a	problem,	inform	the	building/
program	administrator	who	will	inform	the	District	
Superintendent	of	the	incident.	The	District	Superintendent	
or	designee	will	contact	the	county	coordinator.		

The	building/program	administrator	will	notify	staff	and	
follow	procedures	as	advised	by	the	county	coordinator.	
Procedures	will	most	likely	be	shelter	in	place	or	early	
dismissal.	Schools	within	10	miles	may	need	to	coordinate	
with	the	potential	source.

14. Epidemic
The	problem	needs	to	be	identified	and	brought	to	
the	attention	of	the	school	nurse,	building/program	
administrator,	District	Superintendent	and	public	health	
officials.	The	public	health	officials	and	the	District	
Superintendent	will	provide	recommendations	for	the	
school	to	follow.	The	District	Superintendent	will	provide	
information	to	the	media	regarding	the	present	actions	of	
the	districts.

15. Mental Health Warning Signs
Symptoms	of	mental	health	disorders	vary	depending	on	the	
type	and	severity	of	the	condition.	Many	times	changes	and	
concerns	can	be	addressed	simply	by	contacting	the	family	
and	asking	that	they	follow	up	with	a	health	care	provider.	
At	times,	however,	symptoms	may	be	more	severe	and	pose	
a	mental	health	emergency.	Possible	signs	that	someone	is	
having	a	mental	health	emergency	are	as	follows:
1.	 Confused	thinking	or	change	in	typical	style	of

interacting
2.	 Increased	anger	and/or	mood	swings
3.	 High	emotionality	and/or	inability	to	cope	in	the

moment
4.	 Behaving	recklessly	in	a	manner	that	poses	a	risk	to

self	or	others
5.	 Expressing	feelings	of	worthlessness	or	hopelessness
6.	 Making	statements	or	gestures	indicating	that	s/he

wishes	to	harm	self	or	die
7.	 Making	statements	or	gestures	threatening	to	harm

others
8.	 Questionable	influence	of	drug	or	alcohol	use	affecting

current	behavior
If	a	person	is	demonstrating	any	of	the	aforementioned	
signs	of	a	mental	health	emergency,	they	should	be	taken	
seriously	and	immediate	action	should	be	taken.	Building	
Administrator	Supervisor	should	be	notified	and	a	Risk	
Threat	Assessment	Plan	may	be	activated.	

Possible	actions	include:
A.	 Call	Security/911	if	an	immediate	threat	to	student/

staff	safety	is	present
- Arrest	and/or	mental	hygiene	arrest	may	be
warranted

B.	 Isolate	individual	as	much	as	possible	and	maintain
supervision	at	all	times

C.	 Contact	parent/guardian	for	student	removal	with
recommendation	to	seek	assessment	and	treatment,	
either	through	pediatrician,	community-based	mental
health	provider,	Mobile	Crisis	team,	and/or	visit	to
Emergency	Room	if	suicidal	ideation	or	safety	concern
is	present.	Parent or guardian must be contacted in
the event of an implied or direct threat of violence
by a student against themselves, including threat of
suicide

D.	 If	student	can	be	maintained	on	school	grounds,	
consider	contacting	Mobile	Crisis	team	(via	Lifeline	at
(585) 275-5151)	–	note,	family	is	charged	a	co-pay/fee
when	this	is	used	on	behalf	of	a	student.

Response for Specific Emergencies

(The Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES Pandemic Plan is 
part of each building's emergency response plan.)



Public Health Emergency Continuation of Operations Plan

26

Declaration
This plan has been developed in accordance with the amended 
New York State Labor Law section 27- c and New York State 
Education Law paragraphs k and l of subdivision 2 of section 
2801-a (as amended by section 1 of part B of chapter 56 of the 
laws of 2016), as applicable.

This plan has been developed with the input of the Monroe 2 
Orleans BOCES United Professionals Association, Monroe 2-
Orleans BOCES Administrative Supervisory Association, 
Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES Teacher Aides and Student 
Behavioral Assistants Association, and United Public Service 
Employees Union, Operations, Maintenance and Security 
Bargaining Unit, as required by the amended New York State 
Labor Law.

No content of this plan is intended to impede, infringe, 
diminish, or impair the rights of us or our valued employees 
under any law, rule, regulation, or collectively negotiated 
agreement, or the rights and benefits which accrue to employees 
through collective bargaining agreements, or otherwise 
diminish the integrity of the existing collective bargaining 
relationship.



Public Health Emergency Continuation of Operations Plan

Purpose, Scope, Situation Overview, and 
Assumptions 
Purpose 
On September 7, 2020, Governor Cuomo signed into law Chapter 
168 of the Laws of 2020 that requires public employers, including 
public school districts, to adopt a continuation of operations plan 
in the event that the governor declares a public health emergency 
involving communicable disease. The legislation (S.8617-B/ 
A.10832) amends subdivision 2 of section 2801-a of New York
Education Law to require that District Safety Plans include 
protocols for responding to a declared public health emergency 
involving a communicable disease that are “substantially 
consistent” with the provisions of section 27-c of the Labor Law.

This plan addresses the seven components necessary to ensure 
continuity of operations in the event the governor declares a 
public health emergency involving a communicable disease. Much 
of its content reflects procedures and protocols currently in place 
to address the COVID- 19 Pandemic taken from the Monroe 2-
Orleans BOCES Re-Opening Plan, Pandemic Plan and District-
Wide School Safety Plan. Depending on the specific circumstances 
of a future emergency, adjustments to the plan may be necessary 
to address the emergency at hand. 

Scope 
This plan was developed exclusively for and is applicable to the 
Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES. This plan is pertinent to a declared 
public health emergency in the State of New York which may 
impact our operations; and it is in the interest of the safety of our 
employees, students, visitors and contractors, and the continuity 
of our operations that we have promulgated this plan. 

Situation Overview 
On March 11, 2020 the World Health Organization declared a 
pandemic for the novel coronavirus which causes the COVID-19 
severe acute respiratory syndrome. This plan has been developed 
in accordance with amended laws to support continued resilience 
for a continuation of the spread of this disease or for other 
infectious diseases which may emerge and cause a declaration of a 
public health emergency. 

The health and safety of our employees and contractors is crucial 
to maintaining our mission essential operations. We encourage all 
employees and contractors to use CDC Guidance for Keeping 
Workplaces, Schools, Homes, and Commercial Establishments 
Safe. The fundamentals of reducing the spread of infection include: 

• If you are feeling ill or have a fever, notify your supervisor
immediately and go home

• If you start to experience coughing or sneezing, step away 
from people and cough or sneeze into the crook of your
arm or a tissue; the latter of which should be disposed of
immediately

• Other guidance which may be published by the CDC, the 
State Department of Health, or County health officials.

Planning Assumptions 
This plan was developed based on information, best practices, 
and guidance available as of the date of publication. The plan 
was developed to largely reflect the circumstances of the 
current Coronavirus pandemic but may also be applicable to 
other infectious disease outbreaks. The primary assumption of 
this plan is that there will be a minimum of employees present 
to keep necessary operations functioning. Therefore, the term 
essential employees refers to those employees that have to be 
physically present to perform the necessary function. This 
would be similar to the conditions that existed in March - May 
2020. 

The following assumptions have been made in the 
development of this plan: 

• The health and safety of our students, employees and
contractors, and their families, is of utmost importance.

• The circumstances of a public health emergency may 
directly impact our own operations.

• Impacts of a public health emergency will take time for us 
to respond to, with appropriate safety measures put into 
place and adjustments made to operations to maximize 
safety.

• The public and our constituency expects us to maintain a
level of mission essential operations.

• Resource support from other jurisdictions may be limited 
based upon the level of impact the public health emergency 
has upon them.

• Supply chains, particularly those for personal protective 
equipment (PPE) and cleaning supplies, may be heavily
impacted, resulting in delays in procurement.

• The operations of other entities, including the private sector
(vendors, contractors, etc.), non-profit organizations, and
other governmental agencies and services may also be
impacted due to the public health emergency, causing delays
or other disruptions in their services.

• Emergency measures and operational changes may need to be 
adjusted based upon the specific circumstances and impacts of 
the public health emergency, as well as guidance and direction
from public health officials and the governor.

27

• Washing hands with soap and water or use of hand sanitizer 
frequently, including:

o After using the restroom
o After returning from a public outing
o After touching/disposing of garbage
o After using public computers, touching public tables, 

and countertops, etc.
• Practicing social distancing whenever possible
• Wearing a mask or acceptable face covering at all times when

social distancing cannot be     maintained



Public Health Emergency Continuation of Operations Plan

28

Concept of Operations 
The District Superintendent of the Monroe 2- Orleans BOCES, 
their designee, or their successor holds the authority to execute 
and direct the implementation of this plan. Implementation, 
monitoring of operations, and adjustments to plan 
implementation may be supported by additional personnel, at the 
discretion of the District Superintendent. 

Upon the determination of implementing this plan, all employees 
and contractors of Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES shall be notified by 
email with a link to the plan which will be housed on the Monroe 
2-Orleans BOCES Employee Portal. All local law enforcement
agencies and fire departments that are within the towns that
BOCES programs are located will be notified of pertinent
operational changes by way of email by the Safety & Security
Coordinator. Other interested parties, such as vendors, will be
notified by phone and/or email as necessary. The District
Superintendent or their designee will maintain communications 
with the public and constituents as needed throughout the 
implementation of this plan.

The District Superintendent of the Monroe 2- Orleans BOCES, 
their designee, or their successor will maintain awareness of 
information, direction, and guidance from public health officials 
and the Governor’s office, directing the implementation of 
changes as necessary. 

1. Maintain the safety of employees, contractors, and our
constituency

2. Provide vital services
3. Provide services required by law
4. Sustain quality operations
5. Uphold the mission and vision and values of Monroe 2-

Orleans BOCES

The Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES has identified as critical only those 
priority functions that are required or are necessary to provide 
vital services. During activation of this plan, all other activities may 
be suspended to enable the organization to concentrate on 
providing the critical functions and building the internal 
capabilities necessary to increase and eventually restore 
operations. Appropriate communications with employees, 
contractors, our constituents, and other stakeholders will be an 
ongoing priority. 

Mission Essential Functions 
When confronting events that disrupt normal operations, Monroe 
2-Orleans BOCES is committed to ensuring that essential 
functions will be continued even under the most challenging
circumstances.

Essential functions are those functions that enable an organization 
to: 

Emergency Remote Instruction Plan 
In accordance with amendment §175.5(e) of the 
Commissioner’s Regulations, Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES has 
established an Emergency Remote Instruction Plan.  Monroe 2-
Orleans BOCES is committed to providing equitable learning 
opportunities for all students.  Due to the variety of 
instructional programs within the Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES, 
remote instruction will take different forms for each department 
and classroom depending on the course of study and individual 
student needs.  For students who do not have home internet 
access, programs/classrooms will work directly with families to 
determine the most appropriate solution to ensure that student 
learning continues with as little disruption as possible.

All plans will be made available through the Monroe 2-Orleans 
BOCES website.

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/downloads/workplace-school-and-home-guidance.pdf


Public Health Emergency Continuation of Operations Plan

29

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS - POSITIONS/TITLES JUSTIFICATION

District Superintendent 
Administrative Assistant 

Overall responsibility for operations 
throughout the entire organization  

Assistant Superintendent for Finance and Operations 
Administrative Assistant Treasurer 
Internal Claims Auditor Accounts Payable Clerks 
Workers Comp Claims Processors Billing Specialist Clerk 

Responsible for all business operations 

Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources 
Administrative Assistant Payroll Supervisor 
Payroll Clerk 
Clerical support, as needed 

Responsible for all human resources 
functions 

Assistant Superintendent for Instructional Programs 
Administrative Assistant 
Executive Principal Career and Technical Education 
Director Department of Exceptional Children 
Director of Center for Workforce Development 
Principal Westside Academy 

Responsible for operation of all remote 
instructional programs  

Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum, Instruction &   
Professional Development 
Administrative Assistant 
Director BOCES 4 Science 

Responsible for all curriculum, instruction, 
and professional development activities 

Safety and Security Coordinator 
Security workers 

Responsible for safety and security at all 
BOCES locations 

Director of Operations & Maintenance 
Operations & Maintenance Manager 
Cleaners 
Mechanics 
Groundskeeper 

Responsible for maintenance and cleaning 
and disinfecting of all facilities  

Assistant Superintendent for Accountability, Assessment 
& Technology 
Administrative Assistant 
Communication & Technology Services Supervising 
Manager 
Microcomputer Maintenance Technicians 
Senior Systems Administrator 
Communications Group Manager 

Responsible for all communications and 
technology operations 

Occupational Health Nurse Ensure all health and safety protocols are up 
to date and adhered to 

dcomanzo
Highlight

dcomanzo
Highlight

dcomanzo
Highlight



Reducing Risk Through Remote Work and 
Staggered Shifts 
Through assigning certain staff to work remotely and by 
staggering work shifts, we can decrease crowding and density at 
work sites and on public transportation. 

Remote Work Protocols 
Working remotely will be enabled to the greatest extent possible, 
should the District Superintendent or State order a reduction of 
on-site, in-person work. Working remotely requires: 
• Communication of implementation to the employees and 

contractors
• Approval and assignment of remote work

by employee’s Cabinet-level supervisor
• Notification of expectations to contractors

by contractor’s administrator
• Ability for remote work may include expectations of:

o Internet access
o Devices capable to receiving and sending digital

information, files, video, voice communication
o Access to the Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES secure

network
o Access to the software and databases necessary to

perform work functions
o Work phone lines forwarded to off- site staff

Staggered Shifts 
Staggering work shifts may be implemented to reduce crowding, 
or to adhere to NYS Department of Health guidelines. Employees 
or contractors performing duties which are necessary to be 
accomplished on-site may be asked to work outside of normally 
assigned shifts or core business hours. The protocol for staggering 
shifts and/or reducing contact hours requires: 

• Communication of implementation to the employees and 
contractors

• Approval and assignment of on-site and/or remote work
schedules by employee’s supervisor

• Notification of expectations to contractors by contractor’s

Personal Protective Equipment 
The use of personal protective equipment (PPE) to reduce the 
spread of infectious disease is important to supporting the health 
and safety of our employees and contractors. PPE needed may 
include: 
• Masks
• Face shields
• Gloves
• Disposable gowns and aprons

It should be noted that while cleaning supplies are not PPE, there 
is a related need for cleaning supplies used to disinfect surfaces, as 
well as hand soap and hand sanitizer. Pandemics have 
demonstrated that supply chains are not always able to keep up 
with the increased demand for these products. 

Public Health Emergency Continuation of Operations Plan

30

administrator

To that end, we are including these types of supplies in this 
section as they are critical to protecting the health and safety of 
our staff and contractors. 

The Director of Operations and Maintenance (O&M) will be 
responsible for ensuring that proper PPE is available at all 
buildings for required applications by essential personnel. One 
means of accomplishing this is by participating in a Cooperative 
Bid for PPE. This Bid provides a comprehensive list of suppliers 
and products used for maintaining staff safety, and disinfecting 
and sanitization protocols. 

The O&M Department will keep a monthly inventory of PPE with 
the goal of maintaining a six- month supply of PPE, while 
ensuring an extra supply is available for essential personnel 
including O&M staff. The inventory listing will be kept in the 
O&M office. Surplus PPE will be appropriately stored in a dry, 
secure location(s). 

PPE will be distributed through the generation of an O&M work 
order. PPE will be pulled from current inventory, packaged, and 
delivered by O&M staff within 24 hours. Emergency orders 
should be noted and will be completed as received. 

Staff Exposures, Cleaning, and Disinfection 
Staff Exposures 
Staff exposures are organized under several categories based upon 
the type of exposure and presence of symptoms. Following CDC 
guidelines, we have established the following protocols: 
1. Daily Screening 
BOCES 2 employees will be required to complete a daily health
screening before coming to work each day, via email link. The
health screening form can also be accessed at
www.monroe2boces.org .
If, after performing the screening, the employee is exhibiting any
of the symptoms or answers yes to the screening questions, the 
employee will: 
• Stay home from work;
• Report their absence to their supervisor; and
• Contact his/her health care provider for further guidance.
All contractors and visitors to BOCES 2 buildings and facilities
will be required to complete the health screening prior to entering
the building. Signage indicating requirements of the self-
assessment are posted on the entrance to every BOCES 2
building.

2. If Employee Becomes Ill at Work
BOCES 2 requires employees, visitors, or contractors with an
elevated temperature of 100 degrees or higher and/or other 
symptoms of the communicable disease to immediately notify
their supervisor and exit the building. Employees, visitors, and
contractors should contact their healthcare provider as soon as
possible.

Symptomatic individuals will not be permitted to return to work 
until they are symptom free and cleared by their primary care 
provider and/or the local Department of Health, if required. 
Documentation must be provided to the Human Resources 
Office. 



Public Health Emergency Continuation of Operations Plan

31

We recognize there may be nuances or complexities 
associated with potential exposures, close contacts, 
symptomatic persons, and those testing positive. 
We will follow CDC/Department of Health recommendations and 
requirements and coordinate with our local public health office for 
additional guidance and support as needed. 

Cleaning and Disinfecting 
Once the symptomatic person leaves a building, the supervisor will 
immediately notify O&M so the area(s) that the person was in can 
be thoroughly deep cleaned and disinfected according to the 
following deep cleaning protocol. 
• To minimize exposure, cleaners will be provided with 3-ply

surgical masks, gloves, apron, and face shield
• O&M will follow Normal Cleaning Procedures using Virex II

256 (disinfectant and cleaner) and
• Cleaners will utilize portable disinfecting misters containing

Diversey Oxivir (EPA & CDC approved disinfectant and 
cleaner) and mist the room where employee, visitor or
contractor has been.

All cleaning and disinfection practices are based on doing the 
following: 
• Where disinfectants are used, products should be registered 

with EPA and the NYS Department of Environmental
Conservation (DEC).

• Cleaning and disinfection logs will be maintained in the O&M
office that include the date, time, and scope of cleaning and 
disinfection

Employee and Contractor Leave 
In a public health emergency, employees of Monroe 2-Orleans 
BOCES may need leave time to receive testing, treatment, isolation, 
or quarantine. Employees may avail themselves of available leave as 
provided for in their collective bargaining agreement or benefit 
handbook. In addition, employees will be covered by any leave 
provided under federal and New York State law. 

Contractors, either independent or affiliated with a contracted firm, 
are not classified as employees of Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES, and as 
such are not provided with paid leave time by Monroe 2-Orleans 
BOCES, unless required by law. 

Documentation of Work Hours and Locations 
In a public health emergency, it may be necessary to document work 
hours and locations of each employee, visitor, and contractor to 
support contact tracing efforts. Identification of locations shall 
include on-site work and off-site visits. This information may be 
used by Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES to support contact tracing within 
the organization and may be shared with local public health officials.

Contact tracing is a public health function performed by local public 
health departments to trace all persons who have had contact with a 
confirmed case of a communicable disease. This allows public health 
officials to put in place isolation or other measures to limit the 
spread of the disease. Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES will fully cooperate 
with all contract tracing efforts as directed by the local health 
department. 

Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES has developed a plan to assist in 
contact tracing efforts in accordance with the protocols, training, 
and tools provided through New York State and will modify if 
necessary, depending on the circumstances of the public health 
emergency. 

Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES will assist with contact tracing by: 
• Keeping accurate attendance records of all employees,

visitors and contractors
• Requiring all employees, visitors, and contractors to sign an

entry log which includes date and entry time, exit time and if
visitors or contractors, which rooms in the building they
visited

• Assisting in any way possible in tracing all contacts of the
individual in accordance with the protocol, training, and
tools provided through the NYS Contact Tracing Program

The local health department will take the lead on isolation/
quarantine and release orders and provide recommendations to 
Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES regarding action plans in response to 
the communicable disease. 

Housing for Essential Employees 
There are circumstances within a public health emergency when 
it may be prudent to have essential employees lodged in such a 
manner which will help prevent the spread of the subject 
communicable disease to protect these employees from potential 
exposures, thus helping to ensure their health and safety and the 
continuity of Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES essential operations. If 
emergency housing is needed, BOCES 2 will lodge
essential employees at a local hotel.



32

District Resources Inventory

Identification	of	district	resources	which	may	be	available	for	
use	during	an	emergency,	including	the	list	of	personnel	and	
other	resources.

A. Heavy Equipment Inventory/Vehicle Inventory

a) 1990 TCM Fork Truck FG20
b) 2003 Chevy Dump Truck
c) 2003 John Deere 450H Bulldozer
d) 2004 John Deere 80C Excavator
e) 2004 Sky Jack Electric Lift #3219
f) 2009 John Deere Mower Z840 Pro 60"
g) 2011 Ford F750 Dump Truck
h) 2013 Kubota Tractor
i) 2015 CAT Caterpillar Loader
j) 2016 Bobcat S630 Skid Steer
k) 2016 Case 621F Front End Wheel Loader
l) 2017 Case 580SN Backhoe
m) 2018 Bobcat E42 Mini Excavator
n) 2018 Kubota Tractor
o) 2019 CAT D3 Bulldozer
p) 2019 John Deere Gator HVAC
q) 2019 Toyta Forklift

B. Fuel Inventory

C. Dining Room Capacities/Inventory Summary

The	WEMOCO	dining	room	stocks	a	sufficient	supply	to	
provide	rations	to	all	staff	and	campus	students	for	a	period	of	
24	hours.			

Two Tanks: One 500-Gallon Stationary Tank; One 500-Gallon
Mobile Skid Tank are located on the southwest side of    
Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES Campus.



33

Westview Building	(3635 Buffalo Road)		.................................................................................. Robert Nells

Communication	and	Technology	Services	(CaTS)	&	Monroe-Orleans	Accountability,		
Assessment	and	Reporting	Services	(MAARS)	(3625	Buffalo	Road)	................................. Ray	Miller

Curriculum	Materials	Center	(CMC)	(35	Turner	Drive)		..................................................... Angela	Nesci

Educational	Services	Center	(ESC)	.......................................................................................	Thomas Schulte
Karen	Brown	
Marijo	Pearson	
Steve	Roland

BOCES 4 Science (773 Elmgrove Road) .................................................................................... Steve Montemarano

Operations	&	Maintenance	(WEMOCO)	............................................................................	Travis Sleight

Paul	Road	Transition	..............................................................................................................	Gail Mundt

Ridgecrest	Academy	........................	........................................................................................ Robert	Nells

Rochester	Tech	Park	(Exceptional Children, Support	Services, School Health Services)....... Barb Martorana	

Safety	and	Security	................................................................................................................. Douglas Comanzo

Transition	Class	(Village	Plaza)	.............................................................................................	Gail Mundt

WEMOCO	Career	&	Technical	Education	Center	..............................................................	Tony Britt

Heather Malone

Barbara	Swanson

Westside	Academy	(3555 Buffalo Road)	.................................................................................. Martha	Willis

Monroe 2–Orleans BOCES has created a District-Wide Health 
and Safety Team consisting of, but not limited to:

Health and Safety Team

           Site Committee Membership

Center for Workforce Development (CWD) (3589 Big Ridge Road) ........................................ Shawna Gareau-Kurtz

Mental Health .....................................................................................................................................  Maria Tantillo



Jo	Anne	L.	Antonacci	

Chief Emergency Officer 

Douglas Comanzo

2023-2024 BOCES Board 

John Abbott 
Cindy Dawson
Kathleen Dillon 

 Dennis Laba 
Trina Lorentz
Gerald Maar 
Michael May

R. Charles Phillips
Heather Pyke

District Superintendent



8.  New Business 
2. First Reading - Policy #6464 – Educational Equity and 
         Excellence Policy 

  



POLICY NUMBER RATIONALE

6464
Educational Equity and 

Excellence Policy
New policy for adoption.

AD HOC POLICY UPDATE CHART

Italics means added in, strikethrough means to delete. Review means no substantive changes.

Policy 6464



Page 1 of 2 
Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES Policy 
Series 6000 – Students 
Policy #6464 – EDUCATIONAL EQUITY AND EXCELLENCE POLICY  

(Continued)(Con  

 
 
Policy Statement 
 
The Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES (BOCES) will apply the principle of equity to all policies, programs, 
systems, operations, and practices to ensure that all students have a quality education within a safe and 
supportive environment, where inclusivity is valued and contributes to successful academic outcomes.  
Equity is defined herein as, the learning needs of every student are supported in an environment where all 
students are valued and respected; and where student success will not be predicated on differences in age, 
race, ethnicity, color, religion, national origin, immigration status, language, family composition or 
economic status, culture, geographic location, mobility, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, 
gender expression, or physical or cognitive ability. Student differences will be nourished, celebrated and 
welcomed because they are what makes students unique. 
 
This principle will result in a welcoming environment, where multiple pathways to success support the 
academic and social growth of every child. Educational equity, diversity and inclusivity in all programs, 
provides students the opportunity to benefit equitably based on their individual needs and is when 
everyone has access to the opportunities necessary to satisfy their essential needs, advance their well-
being, and reach their full potential.  
 
Beliefs 
 
The following beliefs drive this policy: 
 

Students: 
1. Every student has the right to an equitable educational experience in the BOCES. 
2. All students have the potential for successful academic and social emotional development and 

growth, regardless of circumstances. 
3. Student engagement and voice are critical components of decision-making processes. 

 
Family and Community: 
1. All staff, parents/guardians, and community members must work together to assess, correct 

and/or improve systems and dismantle barriers to success. 
2. Family and community member engagement with staff and students creates effective 

partnerships between home and school. 
3. The responsibility to address disparities in opportunities and achievement among student groups 

rests with adults, not with the students. Student voice will be present when determining goals. 
4. The responsibility for student success is broadly shared by the BOCES staff and administrators, 

families, students and the community. 
 



Page 2 of 2 
Monroe 2-Orleans BOCES Policy 
Series 6000 – Students 
Policy #6464 – EDUCATIONAL EQUITY AND EXCELLENCE POLICY  

(Continued)(Con  

 
Systems: 
1. BOCES climate must encourage each student’s sense of belonging to promote emotional and 

physical well-being and academic success. 
2. Educational equity for all students includes greater appreciation of and respect for differences, 

and holding high expectations for all students. 
3. Providing students with equitable access to a quality curriculum, effective teachers, support staff 

and principals, and support services through equitable resource allocation maximizes academic 
achievement for every student. 

Implementation, Monitoring and Reporting 
 
BOCES recognizes that developing an Equity Action Plan is a long-term commitment requiring 
significant work and resources to implement across the Programs. The Equity Action Plan should include 
clear accountability methods outlining responsibilities and timelines. Periodic reports, at least twice 
annually, will be provided to the Board and the community, based upon an identified schedule of student 
data reviews, staffing status updates and various established reports included in the Equity Action Plan. 
Questions or concerns relative to the Equity Action Plan progress or outcomes should be directed first to 
the program administrator and then to the Assistant Superintendents as appropriate. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted: ___________/2023 



8. New Business
3. Resolution to Accept Test Report for the Year Ending

June 30, 2023



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

MONROE 2 – ORLEANS BOCES 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

RESULTS OF TESTING 
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023 



 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee, Board of Education, and management.  It is not intended to be and should not be used  1 
by anyone other than these specified parties.   

RISK AREA: PAYROLL – EMPLOYEE ACCESS TO PAYROLL SYSTEM 
RISK ASSESSMENT: HIGH 
OBJECTIVE:   To determine whether access to certain payroll and human resources (HR) functions  in WinCap are properly restricted 

based on employees’ job duties 
TESTING PERFORMED:   Obtained “User Security Profile Report” for BOCES employees with access to key payroll and HR functions 

 Determined whether access is reasonable based on job duties as documented 
RESULTS:   Payroll Supervisor can enter benefits information and employee HR information, void paychecks after the last day of the 

fiscal year, and add and modify vendors 
 Assistant Superintendent for HR can enter employee position data; she does not typically perform data entry 
 Benefits clerk, HR clerks, and HR assistant have access to input various pieces of employee information 
 Payroll  clerk,  whose  primary  job  duties  include  entering  attendance,  can  also  make  changes  to  employee  and  HR 

information,  void  checks,  enter payroll  transactions not  related  to attendance,  access  the payroll period maintenance 
module, and post payroll to accounts payable  

 HR clerk can modify active employee benefits, enter certification,  seniority, and  longevity  information,  input nonwage 
and hourly/daily adjustments  to payroll  transactions,  access payroll period maintenance, and post payroll  to accounts 
payable 

 Director of the Center for Workforce Development has “view only” access to active employee benefit  information and 
can post benefit expenditures 

 HR  clerk  has  “view  only”  access  to  nonwage  transactions  and  payroll  period maintenance  and  can  enter  hourly/daily 
adjustments to payroll transactions 

 Benefits clerk is able to print payroll checks; payroll clerk typically prints payroll checks 
 Benefits  clerk  has  “view  only”  access  to  employee  attendance,  leave  of  absence,  seniority  and  longevity,  nonwage 

transactions, and payroll period maintenance 
 Assistant Business Official can modify employee information under the benefit and employee information modules and 

can establish budget distributions, calculate encumbrances, and export/import employee benefits 
 Personnel  analyst  has  the  ability  to  enter  attendance, modify  active  employee  benefits,  and  post  payroll  benefits  to 

accounts receivable  
 Account specialist can post payroll benefits to accounts receivable and has “view only” access to additional pay  items, 

budgetary  data,  employee  and  payroll  period  maintenance,  job  positions,  hourly/daily  adjustments  to  payroll 
transactions, and vendor maintenance 

 Benefits clerk and Payroll Supervisor can add and modify vendors 



 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee, Board of Education, and management.  It is not intended to be and should not be used  2 
by anyone other than these specified parties.   

RISK AREA: PAYROLL – EMPLOYEE ACCESS TO PAYROLL SYSTEM 
RISK ASSESSMENT: HIGH 
RECOMMENDATIONS:   Restrict Payroll Supervisor’s benefits and human resource information rights to “view only”  

 Eliminate benefits clerk, Payroll Supervisor, and account specialist’s access to vendor maintenance module 
 Change Assistant Superintendent for HR’s access to employee position data to “view only” 
 Restrict HR and payroll personnel’s access to enter employee information based on job duties 
 Eliminate Director of the Center of Workforce Development’s access to active employee benefit information and ability 

to post benefit expenditures 
 Eliminate benefits clerk’s ability to print payroll checks 
 Change Assistant Business Official’s ability to modify employee information under the benefit and employee information 

modules  to  “view  only”  and  eliminate  the  ability  to  establish  budget  distributions  and  calculate  encumbrances  and 
export/import employee benefits 

 Eliminate  account  specialist’s  access  to  the  employee  information module  and  the  ability  to  post  payroll  benefits  to 
accounts receivable 

SKRISK AREA: PAYROLL – SEGREGATION OF DUTIES 
RISK ASSESSMENT: 2023 – HIGH; 2018 – HIGH 
OBJECTIVES: • To review the current  
• Reviewed applicable position descriptions 
RESULTS: • Personnel Analyst, Payroll Specialist, and 5 others report directly to the Assistant Superintendent for Human 
Resources, one other clerk report to the Payroll Specialist 
• Hiring and recruiting is done at the input of new employees into  
 and changes made by  
• Personnel Analyst, Payroll Specialist, two HR Clerks, and an administrative assistant each enter different information  
• Payroll Specialist enters name, address, phone number, date of birth, date of hire, primary location, effective date of position, 
position end date, title, FTE, and salary 
• Personnel Analyst enters in the budget code 
• HR clerk #1 enters emergency contact information and enters fingerprinting information 
• HR clerk #2 processes any tuition reimbursements and inputs benefit/TSA information 
• Human Resource Assistant enters appointment, seniority, tenure, certificates, cand degree information 
• Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources approves all requisitions before they are approved by the Board, but does not 
compare the requisition information to



 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee, Board of Education, and management.  It is not intended to be and should not be used  3 
by anyone other than these specified parties.   

UPDATE OF PRIOR RECOMMENDATIONS NOT INCLUDED ELSEWHERE*   

 
The  following  recommendations  are  rated  as  1,  2,  or  3  depending  on  the  magnitude  of  the  deficiency,  potential  effect  on  BOCES  if  not 
corrected, cost/benefit analysis, and mitigating controls. Levels 1, 2, and 3 are defined below: 
 
 1  ‐  recommendations  that  BOCES  has  the  ability  to  change  and  would  likely  provide  a  greater  benefit  to  BOCES  than  the  cost  of 
implementation 

 2 ‐ recommendations that BOCES should investigate, however, the cost of implementation may be greater than BOCES’ benefit and the 
level of risk is not great enough to warrant significant changes to the structure of BOCES 

 3 ‐ recommendations that are considered to be best practices and reminders to BOCES to continue with certain procedures 
  
CLAIMS AUDITOR:   Claims auditor should review transactions for bidding possibilities  1 
PAYROLL AND BENEFITS:   A  second  employee,  such  as  the  payroll  specialist,  should  verify  the  information  input  from  the  Employee 

Recommendation Forms into WinCap 
3 

 
 
 

*Items in blue and bold, if any, denote changes from the prior risk assessment. 
 



4. Resolution to Accept Amended Aramark Contract
(WALK IN)



583510.5 

AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
This Amendment (the “Amendment”) is entered as of the 1st day of July, 2023 (the “Effective 
Date”), between MONROE 2-ORLEANS BOCES, a New York municipal corporation (the 
“District”) and ARAMARK MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, a 
Delaware limited partnership (“Aramark”), amends the Agreement (as defined below) in 
accordance with the terms and conditions. In this Amendment, District and Aramark will be 
referred to jointly as the “Parties” and individually as a “Party”. 
 
 WHEREAS, on August 1, 2017, the District and Aramark entered into a Management 
Services Agreement (the “Agreement”);  
 
 WHEREAS, the Agreement, as amended, will remain in effect, except to the extent 
amended hereby; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Paragraph 9(h) of the Agreement, effective July 1, 2023, 
District and Aramark desire to amend the Agreement, subject to the terms and conditions set forth 
herein. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, intending to be legally bound the Parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Change in Scope. The Parties agree to change the scope of Services to no longer include 
Grounds or Maintenance Services. As such, Exhibit C, Attachment GRD-1, Attachment GRD-2, 
Exhibit D, Attachment POM(ED)-1, Attachment POM(ED)-2, Attachment POM(ED)-3,  
Attachment POM(ED)-4, Attachment POM(ED)-5, and Attachment POM(ED)-6 shall be deleted 
in their entirety. Additionally, the Parties agree to include the below Attachment CUST-3 to 
reflect the continued use of Aramark’s CMMS system to manage work orders.  

 
2. Aramark Fee.  In accordance with paragraph 1 hereto: 

 
a. Effective July 1, 2023, Section A of Exhibit A to the Agreement is deleted in its 

entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

“A. Aramark Fee:  All facilities, equipment, and services to be 
provided by District under this Agreement shall be provided at District’s 
expense.  During the term of this Agreement, District shall pay Aramark 
for Aramark’s provision of the Management Services hereunder (the 
“Aramark Fee”), which Aramark Fee shall be determined using the chart 
below. The Aramark Fee will be invoiced monthly in twelve equal 
increments at the beginning of each month, unless the Client elects to 
prepay the Aramark Fee per the terms of Section B(iv) of Exhibit A. 
 

Year Base Fee Fee if Prepaid 
2 

$145,778.54  $141,405.18  
(2023-2024) 

3 
$148,694.11  $144,233.29  

(2024-2025) 
 



583510.5 

 
3. Definitions.  Unless otherwise specified, capitalized terms used here shall have the 

meanings set forth in the Agreement. 
 

4. Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of 
which will be deemed an original, but all of which together will constitute one and the same 
instrument.  A facsimile or .pdf signature shall be considered valid as an original signature. 
 

5. Agreement to Remain in Effect.  Except as amended herein, the Agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect.   

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have entered this Amendment as of the date first 

set forth above. 
 
 
MONROE 2-ORLEANS BOCES 
 
 
 
 
 
By:  ____________________________ 

         Jo Anne Antonacci 
         District Superintendent 

 
ARAMARK MANAGEMENT SERVICES   
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 
By: Its General Partner, ARAMARK SMMS 
LLC 
 
 
By:  ____________________________  

        Katherine Tracy 
        VP, Finance 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



583510.5 

ATTACHMENT CUST-3 
 

COMPUTERIZED MAINTENANCE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
 

 
Aramark will implement its proprietary computerized maintenance management system known as 
“Aramark CMMS powered by TMA” (CMMS) as part of the Custodial Program.  CMMS utilizes 
a Windows XP software platform and is LAN capable.  CMMS provides management control and 
systematically schedules and monitors preventive and corrective maintenance activities.  CMMS 
will assist in tracking all Covered Equipment/Systems and repair and maintenance cost 
information. All computer hardware and software provided by Aramark to perform the Custodial 
Program, if any, will remain the property of Aramark.  Aramark will repair, maintain, and replace 
its own computer hardware and software, at no additional cost to District.  If District uses any 
specialized plant operations and maintenance software at any time during the term of the 
Custodial Program, then District, at its own cost, will make such software and appropriate 
hardware available for use by Aramark and the Custodial Program will incorporate use of that 
software.  Any Aramark-owned software programs, or files, which have been placed on District-
owned computers or networks will be erased or deleted upon termination of the Agreement.  
District agrees not to try to recover any of these removed programs or files following termination 
of the Agreement and that recovery constitutes an infringement of Aramark’s rights. 
 



9. Personnel and Staffing 
1. Resolution to Approve Personnel and Staffing Agenda 

 
  



10. Bids/Lease Purchases  - none  
 
  



11. Executive Officer’s Reports 
1. Albany D.S. Report 
2. Local Update 

 
  



12. Upcoming Meetings/Calendar Events 
 

• MCSBA Calendar has not been released, will be forwarded  

• July 28  Noon  SAME Graduation, details forthcoming  
• Aug. 9  6:00 p.m.  CWD Graduation, ESC PDC 

• Aug. 10  Noon  Board Officer Meeting 
• Aug. 16  6:00 p.m. Board Meeting, ESC Board Room 

• Sept. 4  Labor Day, BOCES Closed 
• Sept. 5  8:00 a.m. Opening Day Ceremony, ESC, PDC 

  



13. Other Items 
 
  



14. Adjournment 
 


	07-12-2023 AGENDA
	7. ATTORNEY RATES COMPARISON
	11. ADVISORY COUNCIL MEMBERSHIPS
	1. CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER
	2. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS - NONE
	3. PUBLIC HEARING 
	4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	5. PUBLIC INTERACTION
	6. FINANCIAL REPORTS
	7. AUDIT COMMITTEE UPDATE
	8. NEW BUSINESS
	8.1 FIRST READ 2023-24 DISTRICT-WIDE S.A.V.E. PLAN
	8.2 FIRST READ - POLICY #6464 
	8.3 REOLUTION TO ACCEPT TEST REPOR FOR YEAR ENDING 6/20/23
	8.4 RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT AMENDED ARAMAR CONTRACT (WALK IN)

	9.1 PERSONNEL AND STAFFING AGENDA
	10.1 BID/LEASE PURCHASES - NONE
	11. EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT
	12. UPCOMING MEETINGS
	13. OTHER ITEMS
	14. ADJOURNMENT



